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3

(Gavel).

CHAIR CARROLL:

Land Use Committee meeting of

2

June 1st, 2005 is now in session.

3

three items this morning, and we have with us

4

Michelle Anderson, Jo Anne Johnson, Dain Kane, Danny

5

Mateo, Mike Molina, and Vice-Chair Joseph

6

Pontanilla.

7

Mr. Hokama.

8

ITEM NO. 58:

Members, we have

Charmaine Tavares is excused and

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR DUNBAR BEACHFRONT
COTTAGES (MOLOKAI) (C.C. No. 04-43)

9

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

We will begin with Item 58, Conditional

11

Permit for Dunbar Beachfront Cottages on Molokai.

12

Excuse me.

The Committee is in receipt of the

13

following:

County Communication No. 04-43 from the

14

Planning Director transmitting proposed bill to

15

extend by ten years a Conditional Permit to Dunbar

16

Makai Partners/Dunbar Ranch Partners for the

17

operation of vacation rentals known as Dunbar

18

Beachfront Cottages within the Rural District on

19

land at Pauwalu, Molokai; correspondence dated May

20

6th, 2005 from the Department of Corporation Counsel

21

transmitting revised proposed bills to amend the

22

following:

23

a Conditional Permit to Dunbar Ranch Partners to

24

operate a vacation rental on 2.16 acres of land,

25

Molokai, TMK (2) 5-7-003:061, and second, Ordinance

First, Ordinance No. 3002, which granted
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1

No. 3003, which granted a Conditional Permit to

2

Dunbar Makai Partners to operate a vacation rental

3

on 0.63 acres of land on Molokai, TMK

4

(2)5-7-003:063.

5

effective November 5th, 2001.

6

the terms of the Conditional Permit as long as the

7

controller State Land Use Commission Special Use

8

Permit was valid, not including any extensions.

9

Both Conditional Permits were
Both were valid under

Members will note that the revised proposed

10

bills are to grant both Dunbar Makai Partners and

11

Dunbar Ranch Partners a ten-year extension of the

12

Conditional Permits to operate a vacation rental on

13

each of these two sites.

14

proposed bill make the Conditional Permits valid for

15

a period of ten years from the effective date of the

16

ordinance.

17

wording of the original Conditional Permits, it

18

appears that these permits would have been valid

19

through May 23rd, 2003, or the date through which a

20

Special Use Permit was valid without extensions.

21

The wording of the revised

Members will further note that under the

Chair would further note that a copy of the

22

document from the Department of Planning to the

23

Molokai Planning Commission's approval of the State

24

Land Use Commission Special Use Permit time

25

extension has been distributed to the Members under
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1

the cover dated today.

The document states that the

2

Land Use Commission's Special Use Permit is valid

3

until March 31st, 2013, or for the period of the

4

Conditional Permit, whichever is greater.

5

This morning with us we have the applicant,

6

Lance Dunbar; Planning Director Mike Foley; Deputy

7

Corporation Counsel Cindy Young; and Robyn

8

Loudermilk, Planner, Department of Planning.

9

will begin first by having a short presentation by

We

10

the applicant.

11

the applicant and five minutes for the Department.

12

Proceed.

13

MR. DUNBAR:

And we're allowing five minutes for

Mahalo, Council Chair and Members of the Land

14

Use Committee, especially Mr. Mateo from Molokai.

15

My name is Kip Dunbar and I'm seeking the approval

16

of a Conditional Use Permit for our two sites on

17

Molokai where we have a vacation rental operation.

18

They are -- they are on land along the shore which

19

really holds no primary agricultural land and really

20

has no other agricultural use, and we find that its

21

revenue stream has allowed us to diversify some of

22

the revenue that comes into our other mauka

23

operations, much of it which is including

24

reforestation with native Hawaiian plants and out

25

plantings of endangered species behind fenced areas.
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1

So this is the second time we are seeking a

2

renewal.

3

It is family run and owned on family property and

4

maintained by family.

5

questions.

6

roughly 24 by 30, two bedroom, one bath, plantation

7

style, not ostentatious and they're a really -- no

8

neighbors that are affected by their use.

9
10

CHAIR CARROLL:

The operation has not -- has not changed.

So I'd be happy to answer any

You know, the units are 720 square feet,

Thank you.

Members, questions?

Ms. Anderson.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

MR. DUNBAR:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Hi, Mr. Dunbar.

Hi.
Thanks for being here.

Out of

14

curiosity, could you tell me what you rent these

15

for?

16
17

MR. DUNBAR:

They are rented for $170 per night plus 11.42

percent tax and a one-time cleaning fee of $75.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

MR. DUNBAR:

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21
22

And you pay TAT on these?

Absolutely.
Out of that 11 percent?

Thank

you very much.
MR. DUNBAR:

Actually out of the 7.

We pay 4 and a -- we

23

pay the excise out of one and your 7 percent out of

24

the other.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Members, any further questions for
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7

Mr. Dunbar?

2

MR. DUNBAR:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

4

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Hearing none.

Thank you.

Mahalo.
Ms. Loudermilk.
Good afternoon, Council Members.

I'd

5

just like to briefly go over the summary of the

6

application.

7

requesting to amend an ordinance granting a

8

Conditional Permit to allow for the continued

9

operation of the two vacation rentals in the County

And as indicated earlier, we're

10

Rural Zoning District.

11

subject parcels are located in the State Rural

12

District.

13

parcels are located within the Special Management

14

Area.

15

As indicated earlier, the

They're zoned Rural half acre, and the

Each parcel is developed and used as a

16

vacation rental.

Each parcel contains one cottage,

17

approximately 720 square feet in size, with two

18

bedrooms, one bathroom, a kitchen, and living area.

19

The public hearing was held by the Molokai Planning

20

Commission on March 12th, 2003.

21

hearing held at that meeting two people testified in

22

support of the project.

23

community meeting please delete.

24

the Paia Community Center.

25

by the Commission was five in favor and zero in

At the public

The following item of
It has to do with

And the recommendation
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opposition.

2

The request for the time extension was filed

3

in a timely manner.

4

request for a time extension.

5

public hearing held by the Commission was in support

6

of the time extension.

7

of the cottages and the operation itself fit in with

8

the surrounding area.

9

the Department's summary of the application and

10
11

This is the applicant's first
The testimony at the

It was noted that the scale

And that basically concludes

public hearing.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

I'll now open public testimony

12

on this LU-58.

Anyone wishing to give testimony,

13

please come forward.

14

testimony?

15

we'll close public testimony on this Land Use item

16

now.

17

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

Hearing none.

If there's no objection,

No objections.
Public testimony is now closed.

19

the floor is now open.

20

Mr. Mateo.

21

Have we received any written

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Members,

Question or comment?

Chairman, perhaps I'd just like to

22

share a few comments, instead of a question.

23

think this has been a process that has been long in

24

coming, yeah.

25

have talked about getting these vacation rentals

I

A good number of years we as a body
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legitimized and make them go through the process so

2

everybody knows what's happening in their community

3

and how various facilities are being utilized.

4

Mr. Dunbar for the last number of years has done

5

exactly that.

6

Mr. Dunbar in this particular process has met

7

requirements, he's met conditions, he's

8

maintained -- continued to maintain good

9

relationships with his neighbors so they're kept

10
11

I think it's good to know that

abreast on his particular operation.
And just to reiterate what the Department has

12

just shared with us, this particular request of the

13

ten-year extension is one that was reviewed quite

14

seriously by the Molokai Planning Commission, and

15

through their deliberations it was indicated that

16

there was no complaints, no complaints by the Manae

17

neighbors or the east end of Molokai neighbors, that

18

the vote was unanimous in support of Mr. Dunbar's

19

request, and it was also noted that the applicant

20

also submitted a compliance report to the Molokai

21

Planning Commission that was really not required at

22

that time.

23

In addition, the Department supports his

24

particular request.

And as we've also heard, there

25

is no change in this particular operation.
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1

believe this particular applicant has done his due

2

diligence in meeting requirements and has made every

3

attempt in the last number of years to continue to

4

make his business legitimate, hence, the review of

5

this application and this request at this particular

6

point.

7

Chairman's recommendation.

8
9

10

Thank you, and I'll be awaiting the

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

Further discussion?

Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Question for the Department.

That

11

does not work well.

12

Conditional Permits come through the County Council

13

in the last couple of months, and one of the

14

questions that I have -- it's no direct relation to

15

this one here.

16

sells a property with a Conditional Permit for a

17

vacation rental, or as well as bed and breakfast,

18

does the permit terminate at the time of the sale or

19

does it continue on?

20

CHAIR CARROLL:

21

MS. LOUDERMILK:

22

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

23

MS. LOUDERMILK:

You know, we've seen a lot of

In regards to

if a property owner

Ms. Loudermilk.
The short answer is it depends, and -Good answer.

My understanding is that the way the

24

Conditional Permit is put together, it identifies

25

the entity in which the Conditional Permit is
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1

assigned to.

So if the property as well as the

2

entity which the Conditional Permit is assigned to

3

are both purchased, there is no change in the -- the

4

owner of the Conditional Permit.

5

there is a new person, but the entity itself has not

6

changed.

Technically, yes,

However, if the property with the Conditional

7

8

Permit is sold, however the entity which has the

9

permit is not sold, then the -- should the applicant

10

want to continue the use of the application, they

11

would have to come in to change that, whether it's

12

changing the name of the owner on the Conditional

13

Permit.

14

one.

15

purchased, the Conditional Permit is still invalid.

16

If the business entity is not purchased, then the

17

Conditional Permit is -- is no longer valid for the

18

new entity.

So that's the basic scenario for either

So no,

if the business entity is also

19

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

20

CHAIR CARROLL:

21

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

23

Thank you.

I like the short answer better.
Me too.

Mr. Kane.

has joined us.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Let the record show Mr. Hokama

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Thank you, Chairman.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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1

know if the Planning Department or Corp. Counsel

2

would be prepared.

3

because it deals with -- and let me draw out the

4

parameters of my question.

5

somebody has this type of entitlement on an

6

otherwise Rural

7

it ever be used as a comparable in event of sale and

8

comparing it to see if it impacts neighboring

9

properties of the same zoning category

It's more of a finance question,

My interest is if

or however it's zoned, is -- will

10

classification?

11

this case vacation rental, is it

12

legitimate, does it impact its neighbors with

13

respects to property assessments?

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Or because it's an identified in

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

and because it's

Ms. Loudermilk.

That was the question that was asked the

16

first time around for this Conditional Permit, the

17

impact on the use permit in relation to the sale of

18

the property as well as at what tax rate the

19

property should be assessed at.

20

that we had received from the Department of Finance

21

is that for tax purposes -- real property tax

22

purposes it would be taxed at the higher hotel rate.

23

However, when it comes -- should the property

And the response

24

be sold, the -- the tax department will review what

25

is actually being sold, is it just the house and the
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1

property or the business as well, and from that they

2

will make a determination.

3

we're not -- we have not been made aware from the

4

Finance Department Real Property Tax Division of

5

this type of activity occurring in properties

6

designated Rural and Agriculture where the tax

7

the real property tax rate is very different than in

8

the Urban or Residential type areas.

9

At this point in time

So, one, yes, it does get taxed differently.

10

Two, it does not necessarily impact the assessed

11

value on the surrounding properties at the time of

12

sale.

13

includes the property that has to be taken -- excuse

14

me, the business itself, that is -- that has been

15

permitted by the County versus just the property in

16

general.

17

at that.

18
19
20

They need to make a determination if the sale

They'd have to step back and take a look

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

My next question, Mr. Chair,

if I may, is maybe for Corp. Counsel.
Corp. Counsel, do you see it necessary for us

21

to create language -- like boilerplate language for

22

all CUPs or SUPs that when there is a sale of a

23

property, that there's some sort of reporting

24

requirement to the Planning Department so that the

25

Planning Department can see whether or not the
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1

existing use is going to be continued or terminated?

2

And that way we know that we still have a legitimate

3

operation, or if it gets sold and the other person

4

doesn't do anything, there's nothing there for the

5

Planning Department to know that it was sold.

6

the Finance Department, although what are they going

7

to look for to make sure that for tax purposes

8

they're taxing it the correct way?

9

And

I'm just looking for a way to make sure

10

and it has -- it's a greater question, but it

11

impacts this as well as any other.

12

for using Mr. Dunbar's application, but I need to

13

understand this so that we make sure that we don't

14

have impacts, and when we have sales of -- in this

15

case of entitlement that we don't have negative

16

impacts on surrounding properties.

17

Counsel, did I get too far astray in that question

18

or do I need to restate?

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

20

respond.

21

So I apologize

Corporation

Corporation Counsel, would you please

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Creating boilerplate language for all

22

Conditional Use Permits, that if there's -- during

23

the term of the Conditional Use Permit, would it be

24

beneficial for us to put language there that would

25

make them -- make reporting requirement that the
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1

property has been sold and the interest or the use

2

is going to either be consistent or it's going to

3

cease or something like that that forces the owner

4

or the applicant to report the status of the

5

property if it gets sold.

6

MS. YOUNG:

I'm not very familiar with real property tax

7

assessments.

So to answer your question, we would

8

need to get more familiar with -- or I would need to

9

be more familiar with the real property tax

10

assessment.

11

gotten by the Real Tax Department already, if they

12

already get that kind of information, or --

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

MS. YOUNG:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm not sure if that information is

I'm sorry, I'm going to interrupt.

Okay.
The question is not about the

16

property tax assessment.

The question is do you --

17

would it be beneficial for us to have boilerplate

18

language that would require a reporting -- have a

19

reporting requirement by the applicant who has -- we

20

approve Mr. Dunbar.

21

gets approved, so he has his ten years.

22

during that ten years he sells the property.

23

is there some sort of language here now or can we

24

create language or should we create language to have

25

him comply to filing a report saying I've sold my

He goes through Council, he
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1

property and the new interest intends to continue

2

forward with the Conditional Use Permit, or if it

3

stops, there's some sort of reporting requirement

4

that let's us or the Department know that they're

5

still doing the same thing they intended to do, in

6

other words, keeping it all legit.

7

MS. YOUNG:

Right.

If the business was sold along with

8

the property, then the Conditional Permit would

9

still be valid because the permittee is still the

10

same.

11

would know and the Department would know that --

12

that that had occurred because that new purchase

13

the purchaser would need to come back to this

14

body -- well,

15

recommendation and this body in order to get a

16

transfer of that permit.

17

accordance with Section 2 of the proposed -- of the

18

bill, and it would be Number 3, where it's

19

non-transferable unless the Council approves

20

transfer by ordinance.

21

point that that had occurred.

22

If it were sold to another entity, then we

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

first the Planning Commission for

And that would be in

So we would know at that

But I don't see a requirement for the

23

non-transferability.

So Mr. Dunbar, as an example,

24

sells it and whoever buys it doesn't buy the

25

business but still continues to function there and
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1

turns illegal because you don't know that they've

2

sold the interest.

3

here unless you can point to where there is no

4

loophole.

5

MS. LOUDERMILK:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

the question.

8
9

10

MS. LOUDERMILK:

In other words, I see a loophole

No, there is a loophole.
And how can we prevent that?

That is

Well, you know, we've had so few people

actually come in.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I ask this question because it's

11

long period of time we're giving, ten years, or 20

12

years where we've done for a Hana, you know, for the

13

water company.

14

of time and you could sell it tomorrow and then for

15

ten, 15, 20 years you could have an illegal activity

16

going on and we're not getting our -- you know, what

17

we're supposed to be getting as far as the actual

18

use and knowing what we're doing.

19

MS. LOUDERMILK:

We've done really extended periods

In terms of a reporting requirement,

20

that's fine.

We could develop something and see how

21

our Commission reacts to that, but the Council does

22

have the purview at this point in time to add that

23

on.

24

to be a challenge, because we have many, many more

25

people out who aren't even coming in.

And enforcement and loopholes are always going
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1

people who are coming in to be legitimate that

2

really are up and up.

3

of any language at this point in time that they'd

4

like to propose, that would be fine.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Should this Committee think

Thank you.

Mr. Chair, thank you.

6

And I want to state that this -- my line of

7

questioning in no way points to Mr. Dunbar as a

8

specific applicant in any situation that's negative.

9

This is just -- like I stated earlier, this is a

10

question that's for the greater issue of reporting

11

requirements for Conditional Use Permits.

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

And, Mr. Kane, after I give my

13

recommendation and we have a motion on the floor,

14

think it would be appropriate to insert the wording

15

that we've just discussed.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
My intention would probably be to

19

take time with Staff to do some level of due

20

diligence.

21

full Council, that I would propose that since it's

22

an ordinance and it has two readings, my intent

23

would be to introduce it at first reading as an

24

amendment to the existing proposal.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

And if this does move forward to the

That's fine.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Further discussion?

Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I

just

4

wanted to follow up on what Dain was discussing, and

5

I don't know if this is a possibility, but maybe

6

Corp. Counsel could help us, if it would be possible

7

to record on the deed that this land has a

8

Conditional Permit that requires transfer for a new

9

owner to use it so that, you know, there's probably

10

no possibility that Mr. Dunbar is ever going to sell

11

this, but it's unfortunate that he's the one that

12

we're working this out on, but if it were to happen,

13

I mean, ten years is quite an entitlement.

14

knows, you know, what could happen.

15

changes hands and the new owner -- if it's recorded

16

on the deed, that's like a notice to them that they

17

have to come in and in order to reactivate the

18

permit they must come in and get a transfer from the

19

Council.

20

recorded any kind of condition on a Conditional Use

21

Permit, but I see that as a possible way of handling

22

this.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

MS. YOUNG:

25

And who

So the property

And I don't know that we've ever done

Corporation Counsel.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

We believe that it

would be within the Council's purview to require,
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1

for example, a unilateral agreement, as has been

2

done in Conditional Changes in Zoning.

3

would be within the purview of this Council.

4

that would specifically be under -- you know, you

5

could make that as a condition of the Conditional

6

Permit.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Thank you.

So that
And

Then I had a

8

couple questions, Mr. Chairman.

9

a State Land Use Commission Special Use Permit, and

10
11

I note that he has

I'm wondering if that has been extended also?
MS. LOUDERMILK:

Yes, it has.

What was forwarded up to

12

your Staff last week was a copy of the March 24th,

13

2002 approval letter by the Maui Planning Department

14

to Kip Dunbar indicating that the Land Use

15

Commission Special Use Permit has been extended to

16

March 31st, 2013, or for the period of the

17

Conditional Permit, whichever is greater.

18
19
20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And does that letter include the

State Land Use condition -- Commission's conditions?
MS. LOUDERMILK:

It includes the conditions that were

21

imposed on the project by the Molokai Planning

22

Commission.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24
25

What about the conditions of the

State Land Use Commission imposed originally?
MS. LOUDERMILK:

It's under -- no, since the property is
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1

less than 15 acres, sole jurisdiction with the Land

2

Use Commission Special Use Permits are with the

3

respective counties, and in this case it's the

4

County of Maui and the Molokai Planning Commission.

5

They were a -- I believe a reviewing agency, but the

6

final decision on this particular permit is with the

7

Molokai Planning Commission.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So they've already extended it

to --

10

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Yes.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

MS. LOUDERMILK:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

-- 2013?

Yes.
And all of his conditions have

14

been met?

I know that Mr.

15

that he gave a compliance report.

16

MS. LOUDERMILK:

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

Yes, yes.

MS. LOUDERMILK:

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

22
23
24
25

And we don't have a copy of that,

correct?

19

21

Member Mateo mentioned

I did not forward that up.
So could you just tell us that

all the conditions have been met?
MS. LOUDERMILK:

Yes, all the conditions have been

complied with.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Thank you very much,

Mr. Chairman.
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1

MS. LOUDERMILK:

You're welcome.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

4

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

And Robyn.

Further discussion?
One question.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Chair.

So if we create

7

an ordinance like Member Kane had indicated, does

8

that ordinance become like a part of the standard

9

condition?

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Ms. Loudermilk.
Should the -- should the Council intend

12

to impose that language on all Conditional Permits

13

irregardless if it's a bed and breakfast, a TVR, any

14

Conditional Permit, we can take that back to the

15

Department and we'll put that recommendation forward

16

to the respective Planning Commissions.

17
18

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Thank you,

Chair.

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

Okay.

Further discussion?

Members

I'm sorry (inaudible).

Oh, I'm sorry.
Chairman.

Mr. Hokama.
Just to be clear, I heard Mr. Kane

considering some amendments to the request.
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CHAIR CARROLL:

Yes.

It was -- but he intends to do

research and address it at first reading.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Well, if the Committee -- again,

4

this is just my -- my feelings on it.

5

prefer that the work be done in Committee.

6

it's not ready to come to Council, do not send this

7

to Council.

8

be the final document for consideration.

9

want Council to be tied up with amendments.

I would
So if

Council is final action on what should
I don't
That

10

should be done in Committee.

11

think Mr. Kane had a good idea, and I'm willing to

12

defer this and have it finalized in Committee prior

13

to passing anything out to Council for all matters.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

The Chair will consider your remarks.

15

Thank you.

16

one more thing.

17
18
19
20

21

So if -- you know, I

Any further discussion?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

If not, we have

When we had -Mr. Chair, I'm sorry, before you go

into your recommendation, I have questions.
CHAIR CARROLL:

I was going to one more thing before my

recommendation, but that's all right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Oh, I'm sorry.

I guess my concern

22

with the comment of our Chair

23

intent or the spirit of Council Chair Hokama's

24

comments is understood and respected.

25

could follow that line if my intention was to do due

and I believe the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

And I guess I

LU 6/1/05

24

1

diligence and submit something at first reading,

2

I can take his comments to heart.

3

that I would have the freedom to bring forward

4

something that is not discussed here and brought to

5

the full Council as an amendment.

6

something that we wouldn't have foreseen,

7

that's why I

8

because I've made my point and because I've stated

9

that my intention would be because I'm not prepared

However,

so

I think

Obviously that's
and so

just want to make a comment that

10

to come forward with language now, and that would be

11

boilerplate language, more language that would be

12

applied to all,

13

my intent to not hold up this particular application

14

for the sake of putting forward an amendment to an

15

ordinance requiring that all Conditional Use Permits

16

would have included in their language standardized a

17

certain requirement of reporting if there's a

18

transaction made.

19

it would be my intent -- it would be

So I don't know how -- you know, how -- I'm

20

not interested in holding up this project for that,

21

but at the same time my intention, again,

22

we're talking about a Conditional Use Permit, was

23

for the greater picture of all Conditional Use

24

Permits and providing language for all of those.

25

And maybe there deserves -- as the Chair stated,
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1

there deserves discussion, and Committee discussion

2

at that, for if we're not going to -- maybe my thing

3

would be for only extensions or things that are

4

longer than an X number of years.

5

application that's only one year, maybe that's not

6

something that's really critical, but something

7

that's more than three years, more than five years,

8

ten years, et cetera, that's where we should start

9

kicking it in and having that kind of consideration.

So if it's an

10

And that's why I used the term doing my due

11

diligence before I introduce something to try and

12

overcome any type of objections that the body may

13

have.

14

So I respect the Chair's comments, and I

15

believe the intent is to take care of our work in

16

Committee, but, again, I'm not interested in holding

17

it up, especially if there's some sort of time

18

sensitivity on this application where it's needed to

19

move forward because perhaps it got held up for a

20

couple of years, which I anticipate that's what

21

happened from the previous term.

22

rambling, but I just had to make my comments.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

And so sorry for

Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Chairman.

You know,

there is -- there is a condition already here that
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1

says the Conditional Permit shall be

2

non-transferable unless the Council approves

3

transfer by ordinance.

4

It would be nice to have something tighter, but for

5

this situation I think -- I think the concern is

6

adequately covered, so

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

So I think we're covered.

I'll do something separate.
Yeah.

And I think it would be

good to have something that's a little bit more

10

detailed and that would apply to everybody in the

11

future.

12

So I can support this, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

Further

13

discussion?

14

Gallery and Gift Shop in Kahakuloa and there was

15

some concern at that time with the wording because

16

it was -- with this one if we give ten years from

17

the effective date of the ordinance as it is written

18

now, given the lapse of time, which is no fault of

19

the applicant, the extension request results in an

20

extension totaling just a little -- roughly 12

21

years, instead of ten.

22

with this?

23

they're satisfied with leaving the wording as is.

24

Comment?

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Members, previously we had that Kaukini

Do the Members have concerns

Because we can address it.

Or if

What is that again, Chairman?

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

INC.

27

LU 6/1/05

1

CHAIR CARROLL:

If you recall when we had Kahakuloa

2

application for the gift shop, it was brought up at

3

that time that the wording, as in this application,

4

is ten years from the effective date of the

5

ordinance.

6

rationale that it goes back to 2001, you are giving

7

them more time, but if you look at it the other way,

8

well, we're doing it now, so it's ten years from

9

now.

All right, so if you want to stretch the

And it was brought up at that time, and so I'm

10

just reminding the Members that there was a concern

11

at this time.

12

and the Chair will say that he does not at this

13

time -- we can just leave the wording as it is and

14

it will be as the effective date of the ordinance.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

17
18

Yes.

If they have no problem with it --

For ten years, Chairman?
Hearing no comment,

there's no objection.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I will

Ms. Anderson.

Basically he's getting a two-year

19

extension on his original Conditional Permit because

20

we haven't been able to get to this application.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

That's right.
So we're giving him ten years as

of this date forward.

24

CHAIR CARROLL:

Correct.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, I'm supportive of that.
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1
2

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

If there 's no furth er

.
discu ssion , the Chair will give his recom mend ation

3

VICE- CHAI R PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

Recom mend ation.

The Chair will ente rtain a motio n to
The Chai r will ente rtain a

5

pass -- excus e me.

6

motio n to pass the revis ed propo sed bill entit led:

7

3002
A Bill for an Ordin ance Amen ding Ordin ance No.

8

al
(2001 ) Perta ining to the Gran ting of a Cond ition

9

Perm it to Dunb ar Maka i Partn ers/D unba r Ranch

10

Partn ers to Oper ate a Vaca tion Rent al withi n the

11

Coun ty Rura l Dist rict for Tax Map Key No.

12

5-7-0 03:06 1, Situa ted at Pauw ela -- no, Pauw alu,

13

Molo kai, Hawa ii on First Read ing.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

15

VICE- CHAI R PONTANILLA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

So move d.
So move d.
Secon d.

It's been moved by Mr. Pont anill a and

18

secon ded by Mr. Molin a.

19

discu ssion ?

20

(2)

VICE- CHAI R PONTANILLA:

Excu se me.

I think we have -- had enoug h

21

discu ssion on this matte r, Chai r.

22

discu ssion .
Furth er discu ssion ?

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Mr. Pont anill a,

No furth er

Ms. Johns on.

Does this inclu de filin g?

Pardo n?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Does this include filing or are

there additional -- there's additional?

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay.

Thank you.

Any further discussion?

6

Hearing none.

All those in favor of the motion,

7

please signify by saying "aye."

8

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

10

VOTE: AYES:

11
12
13
14
15

NOES:
EXC.:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Opposed?

Councilmembers Anderson, Hokama,
Johnson, Kane, Mateo, Molina, Vice-Chair
Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmember Tavares.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised
proposed bill.

16
17
18

CHAIR CARROLL:

Motion carried unanimously.

Chair will now entertain a motion to pass the

19

revised proposed bill entitled:

20

Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 3003 (2001)

21

Pertaining to the Granting of a Conditional Permit

22

to Dunbar Makai Partners/Dunbar Ranch Partners to

23

Operate a Vacation Rental within the County Rural

24

District for Tax Map Key No.

25

Situated at Pauwalu, Molokai on First Reading, and

A Bill for an

(2) 5-7-003: 063,
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to file the communication.

2

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR CARROLL:
Mr. Mateo.

6

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

11

VOTE: AYES:

Any further discussion?

16

Councilmembers Anderson, Hokama,
Johnson, Kane, Mateo, Molina, Vice-Chair
Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmember Tavares.
None.
None.

NOES:
EXC. :
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised
proposed bill and FILING of
communication.

17
18

CHAIR CARROLL:

21

Motion carried.

Thank you, Members.

We'll take a moment over here while we change

19
20

Hearing none.

Opposed?

12

15

No discussion.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR CARROLL:

14

Discussion, Mr. Pontanilla?

All in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye."

10

13

Second.

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by

5

8

So moved.

Staff.
ITEM NO.9:

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR "MAUl BY THE SEA"
(PAIA) (C.C. No. 01-333)

22
23

CHAIR CARROLL:

All right, Members, moving along.

24

item on our agenda today is Land Use item,

25

Conditional Permit for Maui by the Sea, Paia.
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1

Committee is in receipt of the following:

County

2

Communication No. 01-333 from Planning Director

3

transmitting a proposed bill to grant Valerie Lewis

4

Okamura a one-year contract -- excuse me, a one-year

5

Conditional Permit to operate a vacation rental

6

known as Maui by the Sea in a one-bedroom second

7

dwelling on approximately 14,321 square feet at 523

8

Hana Highway, Kuau, Paia, Maui, TMK No. 2-6-009:008.

9

By correspondence dated on May 10th, 2005 from the

10

Department of Corporation Counsel transmitting a

11

revised proposed bill entitled:

12

Ordinance Granting a Conditional Permit to Valerie

13

Lewis Okumura for the Operation of Maui by the Sea,

14

Transient Vacation Rental within the R-1 Residential

15

District for Property Situated at 523 Hana Highway,

16

Kuau, Paia, Maui, Hawaii.

17

A Bill for an

We have with us this morning the applicant,

18

Valerie Lewis Okamura; Planning Director Michael

19

Foley; Colleen Suyama, Planning Director

20

Planning; Michael Miyamoto, Deputy Director of

21

Public Works; and Cindy -- oh, okay -- and Cindy

22

Young, Corporation Counsel.

23
24
25

of

The applicant has indicated that -- does the
applicant wish to make comment?
MS. OKAMURA:

No comment.
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CHAIR CARROLL:

comment at this time, that's all right.

3

MS. OKAMURA:

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

6
7

8
9

10
11

If the applicant doesn't wish to make

I can just answer questions if -Are there any questions for the applicant?

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yes, Chairman, can we hear from the

applicant just to give us a brief overview.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Proceed.

They would just like to know a

brief overview of your request, what you're
requesting.
MS. OKAMURA:

Yeah.

I built a house and a cottage on

12

in Kuau five years ago and we live -- my family and

13

I are living in the house and the cottage is used

14

for vacation rental and I came forward in 2000 or

15

2001 to do the application for the Conditional

16

Permit.

17

here today.

18

day plus taxes.

19

guess I live on the property with my husband.

And since then I've been on hold and I'm
And the cottage is rented for $150 a

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22
23

And I don't know.

I live

I

Okay, thank you.

Any further questions for the applicant?

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, because this has taken so

24

long and I know, you know, some of the -- I guess

25

the expenses with regard to this application are
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1

quite heavy, what -- you know, if this is granted

2

just for one year, what will you have to spend or

3

what have you spent so far for this particular

4

application and what will you have to spend again

5

and when would you have to begin the process for the

6

following year?

7

MS. OKAMURA:

You know, I can't remember how much I spent

8

four years ago.

I don't know if it was $50 or $100,

9

and then I was asked to do a fire flow calculation,

10

that's a one-time thing, that cost me maybe $500,

11

and that's all the costs that I think I remember.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
consultant?

You did it yourself?

14

MS. OKAMURA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

16

Okay, so you did not hire a

Uh-huh.
Okay.

Because I know the fees

have increased since the last time.

17

MS. OKAMURA:

I can't remember what it was.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I'll ask the question of the

19

Staff, then, about when the process would have to

20

begin again if you were to be granted this for a

21

year.

Thank you.

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

Any further questions for the applicant?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

24

CHAIR CARROLL:

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.
Thank you, Chairman.
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afternoon.

2

condition relative to feeding your guests, there is

3

a condition that says no meals or food shall be

4

provided to guests at the transient vacation rental

5

without prior approval of DOH.

6

your operation, considering that they're in a room,

7

they're in part of your home, and, you know, you

8

can't --

9

MS. OKAMURA:

Can you tell me how -- on one particular

It's separate.

How does that impact

There is our house and there

10

is a cottage and the people are independent.

11

have their own kitchen and this is not a bed and

12

breakfast.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

They

Okay, so why was this condition

added on?
MS. SUYAMA:

Maybe I should explain.

The Department of

16

Health requires them to go through the permit

17

process through their office if they are providing

18

the food to the guests.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

20

not so this --

21

MS. SUYAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

23

MS. SUYAMA:

Oh, okay.

But essentially they're

Right, so
-- condition is moot?

It's just saying that if she intends to

24

provide food for the guests, she has to clear it

25

with the Department of Health.

That's basically
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what the condition means.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
important.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay, thank you.

That's so

Thank you very much.
And let the record show that the last

5

discussion was between the Planning Department,

6

Colleen Suyama, and Mr. Mateo.

7

please identify yourself before you speak, makes it

8

really hard on those transcribing the record.

9

further questions for the applicant?

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

13

MS. OKAMURA:

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

17
18
19
20
21

Any

Question.

Mr. Hokama.
When you bought this property, was

it your intention to always run a vacation rental?

14

16

And if you could

Well, I inherited this property.
Could you please speak into the

microphone.
MS. OKAMURA:

I inherited the property five years ago when

my mom passed away.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And was a business on the property

at that time?
MS. OKAMURA:

There was no house.

It was a vacant lot.

22

So I built the house and the vacation rental, yeah,

23

I guess to use as a rental, vacation rental.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So why are you -- have you

considered providing long-term rental to assist
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other residents of this County?

2

MS. OKAMURA:

I've considered it.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

4

MS. OKAMURA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

6

MS. OKAMURA:

And what was your --

Well, my
determination?

This is -- my husband has two jobs and that

7

is my job.

8

rental, the income wouldn't be the same and I would

9

have to have another job.

10
11

If -- I guess if I had a long-term

I have two sons and I'd

rather stay at home.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

But you knew that this is not a

12

permitted use in the zoning of your current

13

property?

14
15
16
17
18

MS. OKAMURA:

Well, that's why I came forward to apply for

it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

housing situation out.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Hearing none.

20

through.

21

MS. OKAMURA:

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

24
25

I'm done.

Any further questions for the applicant?

19

23

You're obviously not helping our

Thank you.

Thank you.

We're

Thank you.
I'd like now to ask the Department to make

a short presentation.
MS. SUYAMA:

This matter for the Conditional Permit to

operate the vacation rental in the second
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1

one-bedroom dwelling was reviewed by the Maui

2

Planning Commission at a public hearing held on

3

November 13th, 2001.

4

one testified or either written or orally and the

5

Commission recommended approval subject to

6

conditions.

7

that the Conditional Permit be valid for a period of

8

one year; it be non-transferable; the standard hold

9

harmless clause and insurance; four, that the

10

applicant develop the property in substantial

11

compliance with the representations made; five, that

12

the full compliance with all applicable governmental

13

requirements shall be rendered; six, that the

14

transient vacation rental shall be limited to the

15

one-bedroom second dwelling; seven, that the

16

applicant shall comply with the requirements of the

17

Fire Department; and eighth, that no meals or food

18

shall be provided by the owner/operator of the

19

vacation rental without first obtaining the approval

20

of the State of Hawaii Department of Health.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

At the time of the hearing no

The conditions that were recommended is

Thank you.

I'd like now -- I'm now going

22

to open the time to public testimony.

23

testimony is now open on Land Use Item 9,

24

Conditional Permit for Maui by the Sea in Paia.

25

there anyone signed up for public testimony?
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MS. NAKATA:

No one has signed up to testify, Mr. Chair.

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

Is there anyone in the gallery that wishes

3

to give testimony on this item at this time?

4

Hearing none.

5

testimony is closed.

6

closed.

If there's no objection, public

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Public testimony is now

No objection.

Ms. Anderson, discussion is now open.
Thanks.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

10

I just want some clarification from Staff, that

11

Condition 7 said they should comply with the

12

requirements of the Fire Department, was that having

13

to do with the fire flow calculations that they did?

14

MS. SUYAMA:

It's fire

the Fire Department usually

15

requires them to have the exits and the fire

16

extinguishers and the smoke detectors within the bed

17

and breakfast or the vacation rental.

18

it's for, the requirements.

19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That's what

And have you checked to see if

that's been complied with?
MS. SUYAMA:

No, because until they get the permit, there

22

really is no legal bed and breakfast in which they

23

have to comply to certain conditions.

24

check compliance after the permits are granted.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We usually

But she has been operating since
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'01, I'm assuming.
MS. SUYAMA:

Right, as has been many operators, and we

3

don't go out and check to see whether they meet Fire

4

Department requirements.

5
6
7
8

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR CARROLL:

If there's no objection, I'll call the

applicant forward.
COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

complied with the

13
14

Could I ask the applicant that,

MS. OKAMURA:

The applicant, please come to the podium.

I have.

Hi, Mrs. Okamura.

I have followed everything that is

,here, the insurance and the fire -- the control.

15

have a fire extinguisher, everything.

16

of the cottage the paper on the door.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

recommended

19

MS. OKAMURA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

So all the conditions that were

-- you've already complied with

them all?
MS. OKAMURA:

Yeah, and insurance also.
Great.

Okay, thank you very

much.
CHAIR CARROLL:

And we do have a representative from the
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2

Fire Department here.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Further questions?

Yeah, Mr. Chair,

3

use the term bed and breakfast.

4

rental application, correct?

5

MS. SUYAMA:

Mr. Kane.

I heard Ms. Suyama
This is a vacation

Right, whether it's a bed and breakfast or

6

vacation rental, we're not going out and enforcing

7

in terms of whether they comply with County or State

8

codes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

That compliance issue is dealt with,

10

then, by -- it's complaint driven.

11

complaints, you go out and do your check.

12

MS. SUYAMA:

If you have

Right, and as applicants come in we don't

13

enforce

you know,

14

process of getting the necessary approvals.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

19

COUNCILMEHBER HOKAMA:

20
21

I mean, because they're in the

Okay, thank you, Chairman.

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

Further questions?

Question.

Hr. Hokama.
If you had a complaint registered,

do you go out and enforce?
MS. SUYAMA:

It's my understanding if there's a complaint

22

that's filed with the Department, our zoning

23

enforcers go out to investigate the complaint.

24

may be resolved by them applying for the permit.

25

COUNCILHEHBER HOKAMA:

It

The law says upon approval, doesn't
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it?
MS. SUYAMA:

Applying doesn't mean you comply with the law.
That's true, you may be in violation of the

3

law, but that's -- the way enforcement is done

4

through the Planning Department has been through a

5

complaint-driven enforcement.

6

7

8
9

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I'm aware of complaints that the

Department has not enforced.
MS. SUYAMA:

Well,

I can't answer -- I can't address those

issues with you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So we're going to continue to give

11

approves for non-permitted uses in zoned areas with

12

no enforcement potential; is that the bottom line?

13
14
15

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Suyama or Mr. Foley, could you answer

that.
MR. FOLEY:

Mr. Hokama, we do have legislation pending

16

that will be discussed by the Council's Planning

17

Committee.

18

think you're aware that we have only two enforcement

19

personnel for three islands, and we also are having

20

a study done -- actually we aren't, but there is a

21

study being done regarding transient vacation

22

rentals throughout -- for the whole island by a firm

23

being paid by the Real Estate Association of Maui.

24

They did a similar report for the island of Kauai,

25

and once that study is complete, it will be

I believe it's scheduled in July.
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1

forwarded to the Council hopefully before that

2

Planning Committee meeting.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Corporation Counsel, does this

4

Committee have the ability to -- we split transient

5

accommodations into two categories.

6

Time-share rate and a Hotel rate.

7

higher Time-share rate?

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

MS. YOUNG:

We have a
Can we assess the

Ms. Young?

I'm not that familiar with how property is

10

assessed and what appropriate tax rate would be

11

applicable to this or any other short-term vacation

12

rental.

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

Mr. Hokama.

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Well, again, Chairman, my concern

15

is we're going to keep approving or considering

16

these and not deal with the need to provide for our

17

own residents and always take care the non-resident

18

first,

19

the impact of this type of business as a

20

non-permitted zoned property continues to be a

21

factor of driving valuation higher than it should

22

be.

23

our meetings, particularly in Budget that Mr. Kane

24

just ran, of how it's impacting our people whereby

25

we continually need to look at changes in exemption

I have major concerns with that.

It's not fair,

And for me,

as we continually here in all
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1

numbers, whether we look at credits, Circuit

2

Breaker, now even considerations of eliminating

3

exemptions for those that have property over a

4

certain value because we tend to take care of the

5

transient need versus the residential need.

6

feel that our residents are always going to lose out

7

that needs a home to a person who wants to run a

8

business on that same residential property.

9

we cannot even enforce the laws of the County, what

And I

And if

10

are we doing?

11

then I'll say, yeah, those two zoning inspectors are

12

two too much, since we're not even doing

13

enforcement.

And if we're not going to enforce,

I'm done.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.
Thank you, Chairman.

My question is

16

related to my previous question in a previous

17

application.

18

prepared to respond, but I'll ask the question and

19

see if you can.

20

a portion of a property, how is it -- are you

21

familiar with how it's going to get taxed if it's

22

approved?

23

taxed at the hotel rate or do you know or is that

24

something that I need to inquire with Department of

25

Finance to get a clear response?

And Ms. Suyama, I don't know if you're

Because this is an application for

Is just the property itself going to get
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

MS. SUYAMA:

3

4

Ms. Suyama.

It's something you need to respond to

Department of Finance.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

And again, the whole context

5

of the question is related to what Mr. Hokama's

6

comments are, when we have something that is trying

7

to be legitimate, coming through on a Conditional

8

Use Permit, and if they are approved, do they serve

9

as comparables or the properties are used -- if

10

there's a sale of the property and the entitlement

11

goes along with it, does that impact the surrounding

12

neighbors negatively because of the increased

13

entitlements?

14

MS. SUYAMA:

In this case it's not a company that owns the

15

vacation rental.

16

individual sells the property, the permit is to the

17

individual.

18

for a transfer of the permit from the County.

19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
now.

It's an individual.

If the

So they would have to come back and ask

Yeah, but you're missing the point

See, my point is if they sell it with

MS. SUYAMA:

If they sell it with the vacation rental,

22

there is no guarantee to the new owner that they are

23

legally allowed to continue the business because

24

it's --

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I understand that.
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1

tell that to the 8,000 illegal vacation rentals out

2

there who are impacting through the sale of their

3

property by advertising income potential of this

4

property.

5

MS. SUYAMA:

Right, a lot of them are not even legal.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

MS. SUYAMA:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

But that's an enforcement issue too.
Ms. Suyama, wait --

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

MS. SUYAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

I understand.

You've got to let me finish.

Excuse me, one moment.
Yeah, yeah.

Please, speak when I calIon you.

Oh, okay.
Yeah, allow me to finish --

Thank you.
-- and then we can -- that way we

don't get into a --

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

Proceed.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chairman.

I'm just

20

trying -- Mr. Chair, I'm just trying, again, trying

21

to understand the impacts of when we start doing

22

Conditional Use Permits, what is the reality of the

23

impact?

24

I want to know.

25

more questions for Finance and being clear on what

I no like make assumptions on the impact.
So it's more -- I think I got just
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1

kind of impacts when we talk about Conditional Use

2

Permits and how it applies to property assessments

3

when we have these types of functions or activities,

4

if you will, on the property.

5

you, Chair.

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So I'm fine.

Thank

Ms. Johnson.

Colleen, are you aware of any

8

complaints at all that have been filed with regard

9

to this particular property since it first was

10

approved or were there any people that came forward

11

that had concerns that were neighbors --

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Suyama.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

14

MS. SUYAMA:

-- of this property?

I know of no complaints that were filed

15

against the property, and as I stated, at the time

16

of the hearing no one testified on the application.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

MS. SUYAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, either for our against it?

No, no.
Okay.

With regard to the one-year

20

permit, because this was way back in

you know,

21

years ago now, what would be your recommendation, if

22

it's been operating at this point in time for a

23

while without complaints and without incident?

24

Would it be your recommendation to make it for

25

longer than a one-year period?

And if it's just to
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1

be a one-year period, when would the application

2

have to begin in order to meet the requirements I

3

guess with -- you know, when this expires?

4

either way, you know.

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

MS. SUYAMA:

So

Ms. Suyama.

Normally the one year is placed on any

7

Conditional Permit to ensure that whatever

8

conditions are imposed on the application -- or the

9

permit is enforced or they've complied with, and

10

usually we ask for documentation of compliance,

11

like, you know, we would ask for documentation that

12

they've met the Fire Department's requirements for

13

fire protection, et cetera.

14

the one-year validity of the permit.

15

one-year, then usually we recommend a longer period

16

of time, because they've complied with the

17

condition.

18

That's the reason for
After the

In this case, if you stick with the one-year,

19

in about nine months you will have to file for

20

another request for time extension in order for us

21

to process it to the Planning Commission and

22

transmit it to the Council.

23

Council it would -- you know, determined on the

24

Council's workload as to how fast that they can take

25

action on the time extension.

And once it gets to the
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So -- and do you have any idea

2

what the fee -- the new fees are?

3

they've changed from the last time.

4

MS. SUYAMA:

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

MS. SUYAMA:

Because I think

I think -- yeah.
Ms. Suyama.

I believe it's increased to -- I think it's

7

around $500 now.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

MS. SUYAMA:

Okay.

I'm not sure, but I think it also may include

10

that if you're coming in for a time extension, it's

11

a lower fee than if you are applying for a new

12

permit, and I'm not sure what that fee may be.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, so in either regard she's

14

going to have to come back and then she would be

15

able to ask for a longer period of time, you know,

16

assuming that this is granted?

17

MS. SUYAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

20
21

That's correct.
Okay, thank you.

Any further discussion?

Mr. Pontanilla,

followed by Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

In regards to vacation

22

rentals and even bed and breakfast, in a given area,

23

how many of -- you know, vacation rentals can you

24

have?

25

requesting a vacation rental, is there a certain

Like say in this case here where this lady is
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1

radius that you need to have in order to have this

2

vacation rental -- let's say there's another

3

vacation rental down the street or even bed and

4

breakfast, is there any criteria to that?

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

MS. SUYAMA:

Ms. Suyama.

For vacation rentals, because it's not

7

subject to the bed and breakfast ordinance, there's

8

no criteria as to how many vacation rentals or bed

9

and breakfasts can be within a given area.

Unlike

10

the bed and breakfast ordinance, it stipulates that

11

if there is another bed and breakfast enterprise

12

within a thousand feet of the one that you're

13

you're looking at, it kicks it up to the next level

14

of B&Bs.

15

which is the one to two bedroom; type 2, which is

16

the three to four bedroom; and type 3, which is five

17

to six bedrooms.

18

Like you have three types of B&Bs.

B&B 1,

The type 1 is done administratively, which

19

the Department goes in, makes sure that it complies,

20

and then they get a B&B 1 permit.

21

Planning Commission approval,

22

requires Council approval.

23

that we look at distance between the number of B&Bs

24

that are in operation.

25

this area this is the first application for vacation

Type 2 requires

and the Type 3

And that's the only area

For your information, in
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1

rental, and I don't believe that anyone's come in in

2

this area for bed and breakfast.

3

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay, thank you.

Mr. Molina.
Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I'm

6

making reference to the minutes of the Planning

7

Commission, November 13th, 2001, for Ms. Suyama.

8

was mentioned that the -- this is the first permit

9

application that has come from the Kuau area, and

It

10

that there seems to be a number of vacation rentals

11

out in that area, and I do get calls from

12

constituents with concerns regarding vacation

13

rentals and the proliferation of it.

14

have there been any other applicants coming out to

15

become I guess legalized or get some type of

16

approval since that time?

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

l'1S. SUYAMA:

Since 2001

Ms. Suyama.

I believe that there may be some that have

19

come in, but I'm not sure how many and whether

20

they've been completely processed.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Hearing none.

Further

23

discussion?

The Chair will give his

24

recommendation.

25

to recommend passage to first reading a proposed

The Chair will entertain a motion
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1

bill entitled:

A Bill for an Ordinance Granting

2

Conditional Permit to Valerie Lewis Okamura for the

3

Operation of Maui by the Sea, a Transient Vacation

4

Rental within the R-1 Residential District for

5

property situated at 523 Hana Highway, Kula, Paia,

6

Maui, Hawaii on first reading and to file the

7

communication.

8

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

12

So moved.

Second.

Seconded by Mr. Kane.

Discussion,

Mr. Pontanilla?

13

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No discussion.

Further discussion?

Ms. Johnson.

I'd just like to say that I

16

understand the points that are being made with

17

regard to enforcement, with regard to the ability,

18

guess, of our local residents to have places that

19

they have available for rental, but I also think

20

that what we've tried to do is encourage people to

21

become legal.

22

with is all the people that don't come in.

23

every Mrs. Okamura, there's probably 500, you know,

24

other people that are doing exactly what she's doing

25

and not even bothering to pay any fees, they're

I

What we're having the biggest problem
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1

having impacts in our neighborhoods, they're taking

2

away rentals.

3

perspective, I don't want to punish people like

4

Ms. Okamura who are trying to at least adhere to the

5

law.

6

So I think that, you know, from my

And I think that anything that we can do to

7

encourage people to at least try to become legal and

8

not break the law is going to be to the community's

9

benefit, because then at least we'll have voluntary

10

compliance with some of our rules.

11

made it too hard for people they don't want to.

12

They go, well, what's the downside?

13

operate and get away with it and not have to pay

14

these fees and be subjected to delays and all these

15

other things, why should I do it?

16

I think when we

If I can

So part of the discussion I think -- and

17

Mr. Kane and others have, Mr. Chair, been addressing

18

it, and that is that until we make it very

19

difficult, until we put in some teeth in the

20

punishment side or in the downside to make it

21

unattractive, this thing is still going to happen.

22

So I applaud Ms. Okamura for coming forward and

23

being patient.

24

the concerns that have been raised, and particularly

25

with regard to people doing activities that maybe

And even though I understand some of
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1

shouldn't be planned, I also think that she's got

2

two young kids, it's the home occupation ordinance

3

that we're looking at, and so for me, I say, well,

4

would I rather have her in a minimum wage job

5

commuting and then trying to find child care or

6

doing it this way.

7

this and I would like it to be for a longer period

8

of time, but I understand the reasons for doing it

9

just forth one year, so I'll be supporting this.

10
11
12
13

So I'm going to be supporting

Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

discussion?

Further

Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

For me this is

14

the first time that I've heard somebody, i.e. an

15

applicant, come forward and give me a reason why I

16

can't take a totally negative position on vacation

17

rentals.

18

meeting today -- and many of us, we have a very

19

tainted view of vacation rentals, and I still do for

20

the most part.

21

me, you know, our applicant, Ms. Valerie Lewis

22

Okamura, came forward and told us what a local

23

local situation is.

24
25

Because I can tell you walking into this

But I think Ms. Lewis

or, excuse

And I think Ms. Johnson, you know, elaborated
on that, but I would have to concur.
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1

consequences if we say no to this?

As an example,

2

then we will have a mother who is going to go find a

3

job and be out and have somebody else take care of

4

her kids.

5

there.

6

think this is the first time that I've heard

7

something that has substance to make me pause and

8

really take note of how important it is for us to do

9

our due diligence in making decisions, because

And it's just one of many examples out

I'm not going to say it's wide spread, but I

10

there's always those unanticipated or unintended

11

consequences of our actions.

12

So I want to thank the applicant for coming

13

forward.

14

level of frustration about vacation rentals

15

because -- and I think our Chairman made it very

16

clear, and I concur with him.

17

issues with so many illegal vacation rentals and

18

people who are screwing the rest of the people who

19

are out there being fair and paying their -- more

20

than their share because of people who cheat.

21

And I hope she understands that there is a

So, you know, I

We have frustrating

just want to thank the -- I

22

want to let the applicant know that's kind of the

23

context that they're in right now and what we deal

24

with.

25

around,

And I think because it's the first time
I think the one year is sufficient.
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1

something that, you know, you try it out, and then

2

if it works out, you don't get no complaints, you

3

come back, we talk story, and that's how it works.

4

And I think that's when we can give a better look

5

and consider something when we cross that bridge

6

when we get to the bridge.

7
8
9

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

Further discussion?

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I'm

10

going to say my little speech about vacation

11

rentals, because they affected me personally.

12

was a mother who worked at home often, but I lived

13

in a little village in Keokea in a house that was

14

surrounded by other ohana dwellings, and I was very

15

fortunate to rent my home from a long-time kama'aina

16

family who placed a lot of value on providing a home

17

for someone to raise their family.

18

this house for 16 years, the whole time I raised my

19

son.

20

I too

And I lived in

And for the first half of those 16 years my

21

landlord never raised my rent because she knew what

22

it meant to my take-home pay.

23

eight years that I lived there unfortunately she

24

died and the house was sold to somebody else, but

25

during that period of time -- and my rent did go up,

And then the last
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1

but during that period of time I watched every

2

single ohana in that little village in Keokea go to

3

vacation rental, and everyone of those ohanas was

4

occupied by either a single mother or a small family

5

just starting out.

6

because the landowner knew that they could make ten

7

times more money going vacation rental and there was

8

no one to stop them.

9

And they were all displaced

And this was in Keokea.

This is not an area

10

that we have set aside for tourism.

11

purposely -- when we laid out tourism on this

12

island, we purposely segregated those areas that

13

were supposed to be maintained for our resident

14

population and those areas that were dedicated for

15

tourist development.

16

with vacation rentals because I live in a 430 square

17

foot house now, Mr. Chairman, and I spend $1,100 a

18

month rent for that.

19

many of our ohana units have gone into vacation

20

rentals all across this island, because nobody

21

prevents them from doing it, not this Council, not

22

this Planning Department, not this Administration,

23

and I think that that is one of the biggest problems

24

we have right now.

25

And we

So I have a really big problem

And I attribute that to how

We've got almost 30 percent of our residents
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1

who work two jobs, are paying more than 40 percent

2

of their take-home pay to keep a house over their

3

head.

4

don't take control of the situation?

5

they're leaving in droves.

6

security here for our residents, and it's because we

7

allow this kind of thing to go on.

What do we expect of our residents when we
That's why

There's no homeland

8

Now, I'm going to support this one because,

9

number one, it's in an area that is primarily used

10

for tourism.

11

be disappointed to hear me say that, but that's the

12

truth, and number two, because she came forward and

13

did it right.

14

that's the only reason I'm supporting this.

15

looking forward to the vacation rental bill coming

16

forward in the Planning Committee so we can address

17

this, because we are at a crisis situation on this

18

island and it's because we have not dealt with it.

19

And people come, they know, the Realtors tell them,

20

buy this property, can you make your mortgage on

21

vacation rental.

22

I'm sure many residents of Kuau will

She applied before she began.

And
And I'm

Nobody's going to stop you.

So that's all I'm going to say on the issue

23

right now, and I do look forward to us getting a

24

handle on this, and I really think it's

25

irresponsible of the Planning Department and this
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1

Administration not to be enforcing the zoning codes

2

that we have right now.

3

only have two enforcement officers.

4

come forward and said we need three more during this

5

budget.

6

them more money to address this issue and it's still

7

not being addressed.

8

Mr. Chairman.

9

in housing in Maui County, and I attribute vacation

And I don't care if they
They could have

And I know over three years ago we gave

So I'm done with excuses,

We're at a critical crisis situation

10

rentals to a big part of it.

11

Thank you.

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So I've had my say.

Any further discussion?
Chairman.

Mr. Hokama.
For the record, while I can

16

appreciate the applicant's willingness for the

17

process, I will not support the motion.

18

Mr. Chairman, you know,

19

comments, and each member's going to need to make a

20

decision, but for me I view it very black and white

21

nowadays.

22

And I

23

it's a hard decision.

24

good reasons has chosen a certain route to take care

25

of her family, but if we are always going to make

For me,

I've listened to the

People have taken away the gray for me.

just share this with all of us that, you know,
You have a mother that for
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1

exceptions to our laws, then what is the strength of

2

our laws?

3

permissible use in this zoning category, or

4

change -- or get rid of zoning.

5

wild west.

We should change the law.

Make it a

Make it the wild,

If you feel we need teeth, then obviously if

6
7

it's not from the Planning Department, do it through

8

the Finance Department.

9

county to put a lien on the property and have it

Put the ability of the

10

unsellable until it satisfies the requirements of

11

the County for whatever non-permitted use it is

12

being -- that is occurring on that property.

13

know,

14

comes,

15

best way.

16

continues to be attacked by every application.

17

when is enough enough or when does a law need to be

18

amended or repealed because it doesn't work anymore?

for me,

You

I've come to the point where there

for me -- and let me try and say this the
The integrity of land use and zoning
So

And I'm sure it's right, it happens -- it's

19
20

happening on Lanai, I know it's happening on this

21

island.

22

on Molokai, but I'm very well aware because all of

23

us, Mr. Chairman, every day we read about affordable

24

housing, what we aren't doing, what we should be

25

doing, why aren't we addressing the residential

I don't know the extent of the occurrence
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1

needs, who are we building for, why are we giving

2

land use approvals, you know, and yet on big

3

applications we've got a lot of testimony, like

4

Makena, in the five years it took us to even bring

5

it before the Committee and have a discussion and a

6

decision with, if I recall, 41 conditions.

7

Paia-Haiku region had over 5,000 building permits

8

issued.

9

impacts.

10
11

The

We don't talk about the densities that
And I'm sure a lot of that 5,000 was not

for residential housing.
So today I'm going to make my stand,

12

Chairman, and of course, you know, the majority

13

decision will be abided by, but for me,

14

support this request.

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

I cannot

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

Further

16

discussion?

17

the motion, please signify by saying "aye."

Hearing none.

18

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

All those in favor of

Opposed?
No.

21
22
23
24
25
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VOTE: AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane,
Mateo, Molina, Vice-Chair Pontanilla,
and Chair Carroll.
Councilmember Hokama.
Councilmember Tavares.
None.
None.

2
3
4

5
6

NOES:
EXC. :
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised
proposed bill and FILING of
communication.

7
8
9

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

Make the record note that one no,

Mr. Hokama, and seven ayes, with Charmaine Tavares
excused.
Members, it is almost 3 o'clock, which is our

11

12

hour and a half; however, we have some people that

13

have been waiting quite long to give testimony on

14

the next agenda item, so I intend to deviate a

15

little bit from our regular schedule and I'm going

16

to open this item and let anybody that cannot

17

remain, give them the opportunity to give testimony,

18

then we'll take our afternoon break.

19

ITEM NO. 40:

20

DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT, CHANGE IN
ZONING, AND CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR "BANYAN
TREE BED & BREAKFAST" (MAKAWAO)
(C.C. No. 02-55)

21
22

CHAIR CARROLL:

Our next item is Land Use Item 40,

23

District Boundary Amendment, Change in Zoning,

24

Conditional Permit for Banyan Tree Bed & Breakfast

25

in Makawao.

I'm now going to open public testimony.
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1

Anyone that cannot stay may give testimony now.

2

will be opening testimony again after the applicant

3

and the Department has made their presentation.

4

there's anyone who wishes to give testimony now,

5

please come forward.

6

yourself for the record.

9

If

Please identify

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

7

8

Thank you.

I

MS. SMITH:

My name is Charlotte George Smith, and I'm

with the Maui County Commission on Persons with

10

Disabilities, and I was asked to testify about the

11

problem of accessibility of this unit,

12

units.

13

questions or I can tell you what little I researched

14

on this item.

15

a transient accommodation has to have handicapped

16

accessibility in at least one of those units, and

17

that is pretty much the extent of it.

I believe, or

So I don't know if there are any particular

I believe it's five or over units of

I spoke to the Disability and COITIDunication

18
19

Access Board yesterday about this and I know very

20

little other than this about it, so I would

21

entertain any questions that anyone has.

22

23
24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:
time?

Thank you.

Members, any questions at this

Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Good afternoon, Charlotte.
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1

specifically your research, you mentioned that five

2

or more units must have at least one unit being

3

handicapped accessible, was this through the Federal

4

law?

5

MS. SMITH:

That is correct.

My information comes mostly

6

from someone I spoke to at DCAB yesterday, the

7

Disability and Communication Access Board, and he

8

referred me to the site www.ADA.gov, which I did

9

access briefly this morning, and apparently it's

10

five or more units, any accommodation that has five

11

or more units must have at least one of those units

12

accessible to people with disabilities, according to

13

the ADA.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

16
17

Thank you, Chairman.

Any further questions?

If not, thank you

very much for coming.
Thank you, sir.

MS. SMITH:

18
19

Thank you.

.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Members, we are going to take ten minute

20

or 15 minute?

21

not, I'm going to make it ten minutes.

22

recess.

23

RECESS:

24

RECONVENE:

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Do the members have business?

If

Ten-minute

(Gavel)

2:59 p.m.
3:15 p.m.
(Gavel)

This Land Use Committee of June
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1

1st is now back in session.

Members, we have before

2

us our last item on the agenda, Land Use 40,

3

District Boundary Amendment, Change in Zoning, and

4

Conditional Permit for Banyan Tree Bed & Breakfast,

5

Makawao.
We are in receipt of the following:

6

County

7

Communication No. 02-55 from the Planning Director

8

transmitting proposed bills to grant a District

9

Boundary Amendment, Conditional Change in Zoning,

10

and Conditional Permit to Mary [sic] Herling for the

11

operation of Banyan Tree Bed & Breakfast on

12

approximately 2.102 acres at 3265 Baldwin Avenue,

13

Hamakuapoko, Makawao, TMK 2-4-002:002;

14

correspondence dated May 10th, 2005 from the

15

Department of Corporation Counsel has transmitted

16

the three bills.

17

At this time I would like to call upon the

18

applicant, Mr. Chris Hart, to give a short

19

presentation.

20

Note:

21

MR. HART:

Mr. Hart.

PowerPoint presentation.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Land

22

Use Committee.

23

Mr. Marty Herling, and also Mr. Mike Summers, from

24

our firm who was the planner on this project.

25

the second slide.

I have with me today our applicant,

Thank you very much,
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Mr. Chairman.

2

The property was acquired by a previous owner

3

in 1994 from Maui Land & Pineapple Company.

4

refurbished and converted into a bed and breakfast

5

home.

6

property in 1998 with the intention of continuing

7

the bed and breakfast use.

8

informed in 1999 by the Planning Department that a

9

Conditional Permit was required to continue

It was

Our applicant Mr. Marty Herling acquired the

The applicant was

10

operating the bed and breakfast home.

11

important to realize that it's currently in the Ag

12

District and the -- it's community planned Rural.

13

It's been community planned since 1987, and it's

14

County Interim, so the need for the Conditional

15

Permit.

16

the Bed & Breakfast zoning that's part of our Maui

17

County Code only applies within the Urban District,

18

okay.

19

And also,

It's

it's important to realize that

In 1999 the applicant retained our firm,

20

Chris Hart & Partners, to prepare and process

21

applications for a District Boundary Amendment,

22

Change in Zoning, State Land Use Commission Special

23

Use Permit, and County Conditional Permit, and

24

again, the District Boundary Amendment would be from

25

Agriculture to Rural in accordance with the
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1

community plan.

2

Commission recommended approval of the Change in

3

Zoning District Boundary Amendment and Conditional

4

Permit and deferred action on the Land Use

5

Commission Special Use Permit, which is the

6

authority for the -- the Planning Commission has the

7

authority to grant special permits for parcels less

8

than 15 acres.

9

On July 24th, 2001 the Planning

The Banyan Tree residence was constructed in

10

the late 1920s, 1926 to be exact, as a Haliimaile

11

Cannery manager's residence.

12

structure was constructed in 1938 and contains five

13

separate bedroom and bathroom units.

14

have -- this residence is -- has history and it is a

15

unique residence.

16

remembered for being the residence of Ethel Smith

17

Baldwin, the wife of Henry -- Harry A. Baldwin, from

18

the early 1960s until her death in 1967.

19

residence was then rented to the pastor of the

20

Wailuku Union Church until 1990.

21

The servant's quarters

It does

The Banyan Tree is also

The current use.

The

The seven bedroom -- seven

22

bed, I'm sorry, and breakfast home, three guest

23

bedrooms and baths in the Banyan Tree residence and

24

four bedroom and baths in the servants quarters.

25

The actual bed and breakfast operation has been in
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1

operation since Mr. Herling actually bought it in

2

1998, 1999, and are no special events such as

3

commercial weddings, corporate parties and

4

gathering, music festivals, et cetera.

5

exterior live amplified music.

6

there is a proposed future accessory dwelling and

7

it's not to exceed 1,000 square feet and a 20-foot

8

height.

There's no

Proposed future

The property location is, again, on Baldwin

9

10

Avenue.

11

next slide.

12

the Makawao Veterans Cemetery, so just below -- it's

13

actually the last

14

it's important to note the rural area that was

15

identified in 1987, and then of course this is the

16

site of the Hui No'eau, which is Public/Quasi-Public.

17

The subject parcel in terms of the ALISH lands,

18

agricultural lands of importance in the State of

19

Hawaii, it's located as an area that's in the

20

Urban -- or it's not actually Urban, but the built

21

environment, so it's not really, you know, viable

22

agricultural land.

23

It's actually just below Makawao and the
It's actually just below Makawao and

the top most rural parcel, and

This is the character of the Banyan Tree

24

Bed & Breakfast home.

25

residence.

It's a very stately, old

And this is the Banyan Tree guest rooms
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1

within the former servants quarters.

This is Banyan

2

Tree living room, interior master bedroom, interior

3

kitchen for guest use, looking north across the

4

subject property.

5

and landscape planting along the northern boundary

6

line.

7

property owned by Richard and Lynn Rasmussen,

8

Dr. Richard Rasmussen.

9

Avenue.

This is an eight-foot high fence

This is the boundary that separates the

And this would be Baldwin

This is our parcel, 2.1 acres.

This would

10

be the Rasmussen parcel, and it's 170 feet from the

11

fence to Dr. Rasmussen's home and 264 feet from

12

our -- the Banyan Tree residence to the Rasmussen

13

residence.

14

The agricultural lands along the southern

15

property line, which is pineapple.

Agricultural

16

lands along the western boundary line.

17

lands along the eastern boundary line, and this is

18

looking east along Baldwin Avenue with a driveway

19

entrance on the left.

20

toward Makawao from Paia.

21

entrance to the subject property.

22

driveway entrance, the parking.

23

additional grass parking, essentially the residence,

24

the servants quarters, and this is the proposed

25

accessory dwelling that would be built in the Rural

Agricultural

Now, this is actually going
And this is the driveway
Again, the
There's some
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1

District.

2

feet,

3

open to questions.

4
5

and that was by our firm.

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

MR. HART:

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

RECESS:

9

RECONVENE:

Members, we're going to take a short

Oh, okay.
Now stand in recess.

(Gavel) .

3:23 p.m.
3:25 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL:

(Gavel).

This Land Use Committee meeting

11

of June 1st, 2005 is now back in session.

12

like to hear from the Planning Department,

13

Ms. Loudermilk.

14

We're

recess while we put up the screen.

6

10

Again, that can't exceed 1,000 square

MS. LOUDERMILK:

We'd now

Good afternoon, Council Members.

I'd

15

just like to go through a summary of events

16

regarding these applications.

17

for the application was held on July 24th, 2001.

18

part of the Department's report there were two

19

letters in support, one letter expressing concerns,

20

three letters in opposition, and one document

21

containing the protest, objections, and comments of

22

an adjoining homeowner.

23

The public hearing

At the public hearing five people testified

24

against the project.

The Commission recommended

25

approval of the District Boundary Amendment from
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1

Agricultural to Rural, the Change in Zoning from

2

Interim to Rural One Acre, and the Conditional

3

Permit.

4

and zero in opposition.

5

applications there was an intervention granted by

6

the Maui Planning Commission on the Land Use

7

Commission's Special Use Permit.

8

public hearing being conducted, a settlement

9

agreement was reached between the property owner and

10
11

The vote for each request was six in favor
As part of these

Prior to the

adjacent property owners.
Before I go into those specific conditions,

12

just a bit of background.

13

area and that area has been community planned Rural

14

since the adoption of the Makawao-Pukalani-Kula

15

Community Plans in 1987.

16

community plan amendments that are adopted during

17

the ten-year update process, it is up to the

18

respective property owners to come in for any

19

District Boundary Amendment or Change in Zoning

20

applications to have those properties conform to the

21

community plan designations.

22

The area's the Sunnyside

And as with other

Secondly, the surrounding property owners,

23

they were all original purchasers of the property in

24

the early 1990s and they all knew each other and

25

they were aware of the previous bed and breakfast

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 6/1/05

71

1

operation occurring on the property by the previous

2

owner.

3

owner wanted to make the operations legal.

4

for him to do that, he was required to come in for

5

all the entitlements, the District Boundary

6

Amendment, the Change in Zoning, the Land Use

7

Commission Special Use Permit, which allows for uses

8

not outright permitted in State Ag or Rural

9

Districts, as well as the County Conditional Permit,

Their concern was raised when the current
In order

10

which allows for the establishment of uses not

11

permitted in a comprehensive zoned district.

12

It was these surrounding property owners who

13

were concerned that with the Change in Zoning, the

14

potential would be there to further subdivide,

15

increase the density of the

of the property and

16

the surrounding neighborhood.

And the Rasmussens

17

live -- who lived right next to this property felt

18

the -- with the increased use of the property as a

19

bed and breakfast would really impact their property

20

and their life styles, thus they requested an

21

intervention for the use permit and that was

22

granted.

23

The settlement agreement listed approximately

24

12 conditions specific to the use, basically that

25

the property shall not be used for a venue for

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808)

524-2090

INC.

LU 6/1/05

72

1

special events; the complex itself be consistent

2

with the character of the existing neighborhood; the

3

uses on the property shall create no impact greater

4

than a typical residential home in that particular

5

neighborhood; that the occupancy policy applicable

6

to the bed and breakfast units shall be consistent

7

with Maui County and Federal standards; that no

8

exterior live amplified sound shall be permitted on

9

the premises; that the guests of the bed and

10

breakfast facility shall be required to limit the

11

number of off-site visitors to the property; that

12

the number of guest rooms on the subject property

13

shall be restricted to a maximum number of seven,

14

with the understanding that no room for transient

15

guests shall be contained in any future residential

16

dwelling to be constructed on the premise; that any

17

future residential dwelling to be built on the

18

subject property will be used for the personal use

19

of the owner/lessor of the property and shall be

20

constructed in conformance with that section of the

21

Maui County Code related to accessory dwellings;

22

that no portion of the accessory dwelling shall

23

exceed 20 feet in height, regardless of the number

24

of stories; that the use of the subject dwelling

25

shall be limited to long-term residential use only
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1

and not less than 90 days per term; that a Change in

2

Zoning from County Interim to Rural One Acre will be

3

requested; and that there shall be no future

4

subdivision and/or horizontal property regimes

5

relative to that particular property.

6

The settlement agreement has put conditions

7

on future subdivisions on the property as well as

8

the future accessory dwelling that was pointed out

9

to you in the previous presentation.

And these are

10

proposed conditions for the Change in Zoning

11

request.

12

conditions will be imposed as conditions of the Land

13

Use Commission Special Use Permit.

14

the petition to intervene having been filed, the

15

Department did not prepare a recommendation

16

memorandum for the Commission on all four

17

applications, that's standard practice.

18

Department verbally recommended that the Commission

19

recommend approval to the Maui County Council of the

20

land use District Boundary Amendment, the Change in

21

Zoning, and the Conditional Permit.

22

The remaining settlement agreement

And lastly, with

The

So that concludes the Department's highlights

23

of the events surrounding the recommendation to the

24

Council.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

I'll now open up public
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1

testimony.

2

testimony?

3
4

5

MS. NAKATA:

Anyone -- did anyone sign up for public

No, Mr. Chair, no one signed up to testify

other than the earlier testifier.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Is there anyone wishing to give public

6

testimony at this time?

7

objection, we shall close public testimony.

8

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

10
11

Seeing none.

If there's no

No objections.
Thank you.

discussion.

I'll now open the floor to

Mr. Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Chairman, thank you.

Maybe to

12

Corporation Counsel first on comments made by

13

Ms. Smith regarding ADA compliance concerns.

14

that something that we need to address in this

15

consideration?

16

MS. YOUNG:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Is

We believe that the

17

language contained in the current Conditional

18

Permit, if it were passed, that the language

19

contained in the Conditional Permit bill would

20

address any concerns, and that language specifically

21

is Condition No.5, which reads that full compliance

22

with all applicable governmental requirements shall

23

be rendered, and that would require the applicant,

24

in this case Mr. -- or Marty Herling, to comply with

25

ADA.

So whatever ADA requires, they would have to
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1

comply with that, and if they did not comply with

2

that, then obviously Condition No. 5 would have been

3

violated and then you could go through the process

4

set forth in the conditional permitting process to

5

take appropriate action to revoke, for example, a

6

Conditional Permit, if that were the desire of

7

Council to address that violation.

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

Can we add penalties that we

9

think it would be appropriate for non-compliance or

10

violation of applicable laws, such as 5,000 for the

11

initial citation, $250 a day?

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

MS. YOUNG:

Ms. Young.

If -- if there were a violation, I think that

14

would be a -- would that be considered a -- right, I

15

think that would be -- that would come under section

16

19.40.080 of the Maui County Code, which provides

17

that --

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

19

MS. YOUNG:

500 citation, $100 a day?

I -- offhand I'm not sure what the fines are

20

for violations of Conditional Permits, but whatever

21

the Code provides for, that's what it would be.

22

But, again, this would not be an ADA violation.

23

would really be a violation of a Conditional Permit

24

condition and any enforcement of the ADA would be

25

done by the Department of Justice, the Federal
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1

Department of Justice who has jurisdiction over the

2

ADA.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you for your comment on

4

that.

Is there a unilateral agreement in this

5

zoning request requirement?

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

8
9

10

Corporation Counsel.
I'm looking at the two conditions

of zoning on Exhibit B.
MS. YOUNG:

I do not see in my binder any Exhibit C, but

it is referenced.

11

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

12

MS. YOUNG:

13

MS. NAKATA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

MS. NAKATA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

MS. NAKATA:

B, the letter B, I'm sorry.

I'm sorry.

Right, there's only

Mr. Chair, if I may.

Mr. Chair.

Carla.

Normally when we have a proposed -Mr. Chairman.

Yes, Carla.

Normally when we have a proposed change in

19

a conditional Change in Zoning bill, once the

20

Committee recommends that the bill be passed on

21

first reading, that's the stage at which we would

22

obtain a signed unilateral agreement from the

23

declarant, which in this case would be Mr. Marty

24

Herling, and that signed agreement would be obtained

25

prior to first reading.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

2

MS. NAKATA:

Okay, thank you for that.

It is referenced as -- in Exhibit C to the

3

proposed conditional zoning bill, but it hasn't been

4

prepared pending review by this Committee.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

My other question

6

for Corp. Counsel is the property is a little over

7

two acres and asks for R-l,

8

Condition 1 of the zoning ordinance proposal stand

9

up in court?

10

MS. YOUNG:

I'm sorry,

11

question.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

13

I didn't hear the last part of your

Is this condition strong enough?

Will it hold up?

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

16

minimums.

17

I believe, so can

MS. YOUNG:

Corporation Counsel.
Because R-l means one acre

We believe that this would be a valid

18

condition and that this condition would be recorded

19

on the property as part of that unilateral

20

agreement, if that's what the Council -- if the

21

Council concurred with this condition.

22

believe that it is -- I guess, if that, the wording

23

is strong enough?

24

would carry out the intent of the language.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So we

But we believe that would -- that

Okay.

You know,
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1

passed since this application was submitted and the

2

report dated 2002 came forward,

3

Department what verifications they have.

4

your report, on page 3, I'm assuming at that time

5

three years ago the applicant was not residing on

6

the property.

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

MS. LOUDERMILK:

9

so let me ask the
As I read

Ms. Loudermilk.
That is correct, the applicant was not

residing on the property on a full-time basis.

When

10

he would come to the property, he would be staying

11

in one of the rooms.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

13

changed?

14

on his property?

15

MS. LOUDERMILK:

That has changed?

That status has

Now the applicant is a full-time resident

That I do not know.

The accessory

16

dwelling that we were talking about that was brought

17

forth in the presentation by Mr. Hart, that would be

18

the dwelling in which he would live in, and at that

19

time when the application was brought before the

20

Department the applicant would be a part-time

21

resident of the property and represented as much.

22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So that wouldn't fulfill the code,

then, that you had to reside on the -MS. LOUDERMILK:

Technically he's not coming in for a bed

and breakfast.

He's coming in for a transient
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vacation rental.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you for that

clarification.

4

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Yes.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So stating that, has the Department

6

ever considered asking the applicant to go get Hotel

7

zoning?

8
9

MS. LOUDERMILK:

At this location, no.

We wouldn't want

to set a precedent in the Sunnyside area that's

10

community planned Rural to have a person come in for

11

Hotel zoning.

12
13
14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I mean you're circumventing the

system by doing the same thing.
MS. LOUDERMILK:

Yes, the State land use law as well as

15

the County zoning law does allow for applicants to

16

come in and ask permission from either the Council

17

for the Conditional Permit or the respective

18

Planning COIT®ission for the Land Use Commission

19

Special Use Permit to establish uses not outright

20

permitted, and it's under the discretion of either

21

the Council to approve or deny the Conditional

22

Permit as well as the land use -- excuse me, the

23

in this case the Maui Planning Commission to either

24

approve or deny this Land Use Commission Special Use

25

Permit.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So, Corporation Counsel, it's

2

deceiving, because what is listed as the agenda item

3

is a Banyan Tree Bed & Breakfast.

4

said that it is not a bed and breakfast.

5

MS. LOUDERMILK:

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

8

9

Planning just

In the report it -- excuse me.
Corporation Counsel.
So what creature are we really

dealing with legally?
MS. NAKATA:

Mr. Chair.

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

MS. NAKATA:

Ms. Nakata.

I believe the Banyan Tree Bed & Breakfast is

12

the name of the operation and it should have been

13

listed on the meeting agenda in quotation marks.

14

it wasn't, it should have been.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

16

MS. YOUNG:

If

It's in quotations.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, we would concur with

17

Ms. Nakata that the instances where bed and

18

breakfast is noted on the agenda, it's actually the

19

title or the name of the bed and break -- the name

20

of the transient or short-term vacation rental and

21

not -- and not referencing a bed and breakfast home

22

as described and provided for in Chapter 19.64 of

23

the Maui County Code, and specifically it does refer

24

to a Conditional Permit,

25

discussion on a Conditional Permit for short-term

so we do believe that a
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vacation rental would comply with the Sunshine Law.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Zoning Condition 1 shall not be

3

subject to a property -- condominium property

4

regime.

5

They don't go through a review.

6

un subdivided interest.

7

Real Property Tax would get involved, would they?

8

9
10
11

MS. YOUNG:

Is it enforceable, Corporation Counsel?
It's an

So I don't think Finance or

I'm not sure, but I do know that if -- if this

property were sub -- were subject to a CPR, then it
would be a violation of their zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

With the intended use, this

12

applicant can ask for a homeowner's exemption for

13

part of the residence?

14
15
16

MS. YOUNG:

I'm not prepared to answer that.

I don't

know.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Planning Department, was this

17

question brought before either the Department or the

18

Commission earlier?

19

provided?

20

MS. LOUDERMILK:

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

22
23
24
25

And if so, what was a response

It was not brought up before.
Do you folks have a comment this

afternoon?
MS. LOUDERMILK:

Clarification.

Brought up at the time

when the public hearing was held?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

No, right now.
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right now.
MS. LOUDERMILK:

Right now, the issue regarding the

3

partial exemption never emerged in discussions until

4

today's earlier discussions on other properties.

5
6

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
one?
MS. LOUDERMILK:

We would have to defer that question to

8

Finance.

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

10
11
12

So if he did apply, would he get

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Chairman.

Members?

Mr. Mateo, followed by

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much, and

13

I'd like to go back to Mr. Hokama's question

14

regarding bed and breakfast versus vacation rental,

15

because even though we're looking at an application

16

for vacation rental, the applicant's presentation to

17

us this afternoon states that the applicant acquired

18

the property in 1998 with the intention of

19

continuing the bed and breakfast use.

20

vacation rental use.

21

use.

22

of this particular item, because it does make a

23

difference.

24
25

It's not the

It's the bed and breakfast

So I think I'd like to ask for clarification

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Regarding why the applicant continues to

call it a bed and breakfast,

I don't know.
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1

what the confusion does emerge, Member Mateo, does

2

have to do with how we process and what our Code

3

indicates is what.

4

specific section regarding bed and breakfast, and

5

that there are certain criterias, if you want to

6

come in for the bed and breakfast permit,

7

it's in zoned residential property in the Urban

8

District, the owner lives within the house, and so

9

forth.

10

And in our Code we do have a

such as

Whereas if these are not met or are met but

11

are not in the Urban District, then should the

12

applicant want to go forward, depending on the land

13

use designations, you have either the County

14

Conditional Permit, which we talked about today

15

which allows for an establishment of a use not

16

outright permitted, or in some other cases if

17

they're in the State rural or agricultural district,

18

you have the State Land Use Commission's Special Use

19

Permit, which also allows for the establishment of

20

uses not outright permitted.

21

Those two permits are discretionary permits.

22

They can either be approved or denied by the final

23

decision-making body.

24

applicants to use different terminologies when

25

they -- what they want to call their operations, but

We try to encourage the
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1

bottom line is they continue to call it a bed and

2

breakfast.

3

process it as a bed and breakfast.

4

continue to have this occur.

5

unfortunately not in the business of regulating the

6

names for the different entities.

7

The County Planning Department does not

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Ma'am,

I think we will

We are not --

I'm going to interrupt right

8

there, because I understand that's not your kuleana

9

to do that, but I think it's your responsibility to

10

help us --

11

MS. LOUDERMILK:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

Sure,

I understand.
differentiate the two different

animals we're dealing with, yeah.

14

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Yeah.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Vacation rental versus B&B.

And

16

this is kind of what happens to,

17

add to the confusion of it all, because like if this

18

is a B&B as the applicant came up and told us it is,

19

then why are we talking vacation rental?

20

the applicant needs to make it real clear to us

21

what --

22

MS. LOUDERMILK:

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

24
25

you know, call

So perhaps

Sure.
this actually -- what the

operation really is.
Secondly, Mr. Chair, to follow up on another
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1

one of the comments that Planning made.

2

do with the Rasmussens' petition to intervene.

3

MS. LOUDERMILK:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

This has to

Yes.
Had that petition been withdrawn

5

because the Planning Commission actually did make a

6

recommendation?

7

MS. LOUDERMILK:

No, it has not been.

It's still active.

8

They're keeping that open should the Council choose

9

to take action that is not in keeping with the

10

settlement agreement.

11

option open depending on the -- after action taken

12

by the full Council whether to approve or deny all

13

of the applications, then we will go back to the

14

Maui Planning Commission and have an action meeting

15

on that, whether the request to intervention is

16

withdrawn and that -- or not.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

They chose to keep that

So the terms of the settlement

18

agreement, on page 3 of that agreement, Number 2,

19

when it says the petition to intervene shall be

20

formally withdrawn prior to the time when the

21

Planning Commission renders a decision on the

22

Special Use Permit, the addition to that was that it

23

could at a later time be,

24

again?

25

delay in the actual filing of that intervention?

Can they go back?

I don't know, reinstituted
Is this what it is, a
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MS. LOUDERMILK:

No.

No, it's not.

That particular

2

section is a way for the intervenors to preserve

3

their right to continue with their intervention

4

prior to going to the Commission.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

The only reason I ask is

6

because on that same item heading, deferral of

7

petition to intervene

8

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Yes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

there is no language that says,

10

you know, they can do it at a later time.

11

it's withdrawn at a time of.

12

MS. LOUDERMILK:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yes.
So I don't see in the initial

14

agreement -- that settlement agreement that

15

know, like has that additional language --

16

MS. LOUDERMILK:

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

other than the language that was

identified in the summary report.

19

Mr. Chair.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

23

you

I see.

18

22

It says

I'll pass for now.

Okay, thank you,

I'm done, Chair.

Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson,

followed by

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I have

24

several concerns with this.

One is, you know, I

25

listened to what Ms. Loudermilk has to say, but if
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1

you read the Planning Department's report, they

2

refer to this as a bed and breakfast on several

3

occasions in their report, and, you know, I'm not

4

going to get lost in the semantics of it.

5

an eight-bedroom operation -- well, it's currently

6

got eight, and I guess they're

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

Basically

It is seven proposed that can go to eight.
Well, it currently has eight

bedrooms, whether or not a resident manager lives in

10

one of them or Mr. Herling is

11

it has eight bedrooms, five in the servants quarters

12

and three in the main house.

13

build another dwelling unit for his use.

14

provided by people who live in the area indicate

15

that he does not live there and that he's not a

16

resident of Maui.

17

like to have that information.

18
19

CHAIR CARROLL:

is in one of them,

And he intends to
Testimony

If that is incorrect and -- I'd

If there's no objection, I'd call the

applicant down to answer that question.

20

MR. HART:

Thank you very much.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

MR. HART:

The applicant will step forward.

Mr. Herling is a resident of Maui.

He bought

23

the house back in 1998, the residence, with the

24

intention of moving to Maui.

25

California, in San Francisco, and he has since

He was a contractor in
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1

during this lapse of time sold his business and

2

moved to Maui and is a permanent residence [sic] at

3

the Banyan Tree Bed & Breakfast.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MR. HART:

6

Mr. Herling probably should tell you that, but

he does live in the main house, yes.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

MR. HART:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10
11

Does he live in the main house?

He does live in the main house?

Yes, he does.
So that would qualify him to have

a bed and breakfast operation within that house?
MR. HART:

Yeah, yeah.

Can I

just point out again that

12

the bed and breakfast ordinance, as we have it

13

codified in our Maui County Code Chapter 19, refers

14

only to the Urban District.

15

Rural District and the Agricultural District, and

16

there had been other -- like the Thompson Ranch

17

project, you know, it's

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

MR. HART:

It's our

This is -- this is the

Mr. Hart.
just the intention, you know, of

20

the applicant to call it a bed and breakfast

21

primarily because of the main -- the main house with

22

the three bedrooms.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

I'm sorry.

Ms. Anderson.
I have no further questions for

the applicant's consultant, Mr. Chairman, but I do
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have other questions and comments.
CHAIR CARROLL:

While I have the applicant over here,

could you -- Ms. Johnson, did you have a question?

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

Mr. Chairman,

I'm not finished.

Would you mind if we finish with the

6

applicant before we continue with you, Ms. Anderson?

7

I thought you said you were finished asking

8

questions of the applicant.

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10

train of thought,

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, but I'd like to finish my
if I could.

All right, proceed.
As I said, it doesn't really

13

matter what the semantics are, what you call it.

14

me,

15

feel that it's appropriate.

16

allow for it.

17

condition for this property, then it's going to be

18

very difficult to deny others.

To

it's a small boutique hotel and I don't really

19

Our zoning doesn't

And if we're going to make a special

It's on a very dangerous curve.

It's going

20

to require grading on both sides of the driveway to

21

allow safe ingress and egress to the property.

22

is the very road where we have the bike tours coming

23

down.

24

place for a small boutique hotel, which I consider

25

this to be, whether it's a vacation rental or a bed

This

And so I feel that it's not an appropriate
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1

and breakfast, whatever the semantics you want to

2

use.

3

of Maui County in its historic nature, and I think

4

that probably the Rasmussens and all the neighbors

5

that came and testified feel the same way or they

6

would not have been compelled to hire an attorney

7

and file for intervention and work for 18 months to

8

get conditions that they could live with.

9

I wish the police were still here,

I just feel we need to keep this

this area

10

Mr. Chairman, but given that they're not, I will

11

because I do have questions for them, but I will

12

pass further questions.

13

questions and I will pass and speak again later.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I know other people have

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

Yes, and perhaps Staff can answer

16

this as well as the applicant.

17

meals being served on the premises?

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

19

MS. LOUDERMILK:

20
21

Ms. Johnson.

Are there actual

Ms. Loudermilk.
My understanding is that no cooked meals

are served on the premises.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, and that is also one of the

22

other elements of the B&B, that it does permit, as

23

long as Department of Health approves it, that they

24

are able to serve some type of limited I guess

25

prepared meals?
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Ms. Loudermilk.
Yes, any type of hotel operation, whether

3

you want to call it a bed and breakfast -- whatever

4

category it falls under, if certain types of meals

5

are going to be cooked, basically meals cooked on

6

the property, the Department of Health will require

7

a certified kitchen be constructed on the property

8

and would have to be reviewed every year.

9

Department of Health has allowed in the past if

10

these operators go to the bakery or the grocery

11

store and purchase ready-made products, such as

12

muffins and Danishes and POG, to have that be a

13

located for general use and consumption.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

The

Okay, with regard to the operation

15

also of, you know, this facility, are there

16

employees that do the cleaning?

17

staff that are on the property that are either

18

maintaining the units or -- you know, like I guess I

19

would look at it as people that would be cleaning

20

the rooms and

21

MS. LOUDERMILK:

I would defer to the applicant on that

22

particular question.

23

defer to the applicant on that.

24
25

Are there other

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

We did not -- yeah, I would

Okay, so that would be one -- one

of my questions, I guess, to the applicant, then.
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

forward?

Would you like to call the applicant

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

Yes, if that's possible.

If there's no objection, I'll call

Mr. Hart.

6

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

7

MR. HART:

No objections.

Mr. Chair, Chris Hart.

I'd like to introduce

8

Mr. Marty Herling, and just to address the last

9

question about employees.

10

MR. HERLING:

Okay, first I'd just like to say that I'm

11

honored to be here in this Council meeting and I

12

have been working hard to move to Maui and I finally

13

have moved to Maui and I live on this property, and

14

so what was the specific question?

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

When you have -- let's say you're

16

fully occupied, do you have staff -- or even if

17

you're not fully occupied,

18

regular maintenance staff, people that come in and

19

service the units,

20

doing the cleaning and other things?

21

have staff, how many people would be on property to

22

care for the premises?

23

MR. HERLING:

I guess, do you have

like changing the bedding or

Okay, well,

And if you do

I do have people who come and

24

clean up the rooms after the people leave, you know,

25

each time somebody leaves, and that's generally --
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1

it's generally one person at a time cleaning the

2

rooms, but I have a few people who work during the

3

week doing that.

4

does some gardening, and he's there twice a week.

5

And then I have had a manager until I moved here,

6

who still lives on the property and she doesn't pay

7

any rent.

8

she's no longer doing too much.

9

everything now.

And then I have a gardener who

She's been staying there, but she -I'm doing mostly

Because this is my only job.

I

10

don't have another job.

11

retirement, was to move here and run this place and

12

live there at the same time.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

This was my idea of

And with regard to the

14

operation, you know, and the characterization I

15

guess that this is a boutique hotel of sorts, do you

16

serve food or --

17

MR. HERLING:

We haven't served food as yet, and if we do

18

serve food, and we're thinking about it because it

19

might be easier to advertise that way, but we would

20

just do prepared foods.

21

never be any cooking.

22

any -- just the refrigerator and just putting out

23

fruit and maybe danish or something like that.

24

That's more or less what we would ever do, nothing

25

more than that.

We wouldn't -- there would
There wouldn't be any use of
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

In

in that area, because

2

I know,

3

Cemetery, the line of sight issue with regard to

4

people ingressing and egressing your property, has

5

that been a problem or do you -- how do you intend

6

to address that?

7

MR. HERLING:

I was just up there at Makawao Veterans

Well, we actually have addressed it already.

8

I tried to address every issue that the neighbors

9

brought up to see if we could work out something,

10

and they seem to be agreeable to everything that I

11

brought up.

12

testimony, they all say it was okay to have a bed

13

and breakfast.

14

Zoning.

15

didn't even have any intention of changing the

16

zoning, but that seemed like the way that I was told

17

to legalize this place.

All the neighbors, if you read the

They just didn't like the Change in

That's what they were afraid of.

And, you know,

18

Now,

I

I mean, quite honestly, as

19

soon as I bought the place and I found out that I

20

needed to legalize it I started that process in

21

1999.

22

and I'm trying to cooperate totally with my

23

neighbors.

24

subdividing, I mean, because I want to keep the

25

nature of this area the same as my neighbors do.

I'm not trying to hide anything or anything,

I told them I have no intention of ever
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1

have no intention of making it any different, and

2

also many of my neighbors have had guests stay at my

3

place and told them to stay at my place, including

4

my next door neighbor, the Rasmussens, have actually

5

stayed there with the guests and visited with the

6

guests that they suggested stay there.

7

So I don't know what this objection from the

8

neighbors -- I don't think it exists any longer,

9

but, you know, I really couldn't say.

You know, we

10

tried -- we both had attorneys and we both tried to

11

come to a compromise where they could be happy and I

12

could be happy, and I gave up, you know, this and

13

that.

14

rooms.

15

weddings, no special events.

16

there would be recorded or amplified music, I said

17

no amplified music.

18

with my neighbors.

19

you know, there's no -- I mean if you would ask any

20

of the neighbors, they don't even know we're there.

21

I wanted eight rooms.

They said only seven

I wanted maybe have weddings, they said no

I mean,

Okay.

You know, maybe

I want to get along

And this place is so quiet that,

And as far as the sight distance there was an

22

engineer report and we have complied with that

23

engineering report.

24

that needs to be done, well, we'll comply with that.

25

I mean you

If there's something further

I spent --
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1

I think you've answered the question, sir.

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

Thank you.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

4

MR. HERLING:

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I really appreciate it.

Thanks very much.
So you have not had any accidents

6

or incidents or anything on that since you addressed

7

the problem?

8
9

MR. HERLING:

I haven't had any accidents from any --

anybody leaving my premises.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

11

MR. HERLING:

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay, thank you very much.

Okay, thank you.
Thank you.

I have a question for the

13

department.

14

infrastructure improvements referred in paragraph

15

4-D, page 19 of the Planning Department's report and

16

those infrastructure improvements were recommended

17

in a traffic impact assessment report.

18

correspondence dated October 13th, 2003, the

19

Planning Director stated that the Department

20

recommends the improvements be part of the

21

Conditional Permit.

22

recommend that these be part of the Conditional

23

Permit?

24
25

MS. LOUDERMILK:

That last term, there was several

By

Does the Department still

Was that the follow-up letter that the

Department sent?
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

MS. LOUDERMILK:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

4

I believe that is.
Yeah, should the -- should the -Not being sure which letter you're

referring to.

5

MS. LOUDERMILK:

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

7

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Because there was
Ms. Nakata has
Okay, thank you.

This referred to the

8

October 13th, 2003 transmittal.

This was in

9

response to a number of questions requested by the

10

previous Committee Chair, and regarding the

11

infrastructure improvements we -- we do recommend

12

continue to recommend that those improvements be

13

part of the Conditional Permit.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

And those were -- I don't know

15

if the members have that before them, but that would

16

have been on page 19, 2-A, the sight distance

17

issues, improved A, would be improving the shoulder

18

and side slopes as recommended by Otomo Engineering

19

Incorporated.

20

the fall of 2000.

21

driveway warning signs.

22

feasibility -- C is investigate the feasibility of

23

reducing the speed limit from 30 to 25.

24

approved install, the appropriate speed limit signs.

25

And 3, install advisory speed signs for makai-bound

The parabolic mirror was installed in
Install the appropriate advance
Investigate the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

INC.

And if

LU 6/1/05

98

1

traffic along Baldwin Avenue to be consistent with

2

the mauka-bound traffic.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

All right, Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Mr. Chair, I want to

4

follow up on that.

In the Department of Public

5

Works review of this project back in 2000 they

6

recommended a condition aside from grading on both

7

sides of the driveway to improve sight distance.

8

They do state that the driveway to the subject

9

property suffers from poor vehicular sight distance,

10

and that one of the recommended conditions was a

11

hold harmless agreement indemnifying the County be

12

executed should the final sight distances not be

13

adequate to meet County standards.

14

determined yet if the sight distance does meet the

15

County Code?

16
17

MS. LOUDERMILK:

We're going to defer that question to the

representative of Public Works.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

20
21

Has it been

Thank you.

Mr. Miyamoto, please identify yourself at

the microphone.
MR. MIYAMOTO:

Thank you.

Yes, my name is Mike Miyamoto.

22

I'm the Deputy Director for Public Works, and at

23

this time we have not investigated.

24

condition actually shows, they also have to evaluate

25

whether the speed limit should be reduced, and that

As the
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has not come to our door at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But the property's already been

graded, correct?
MR. MIYAMOTO:

I can't confirm that.

5

seen it.

6

the site at this time.

7

I've not personally

I have not spoken to someone who's been to

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So, Mr.

[sic] Loudermilk, is this

8

hold harmless agreement condition included in the

9

conditions from the Department or the Commission?

10

MS. LOUDERMILK:

As indicated earlier, since there was an

11

intervention, we did not prepare a formal

12

recommendation memorandum.

13

those conditions that would be included in the Land

14

Use Commission Special Use Permit recommendation.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

This would be one of

So the only conditions that we

16

have in front of us today are those conditions that

17

were agreed to in the settlement agreement in the

18

intervention?

19

MS. LOUDERMILK:

20

yes.

21

Having to do with the Change in Zoning,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so there are other conditions

22

in the settlement agreement that do not have to do

23

with the Change in Zoning?

24
25

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Correct.

Those would have to do with

should the Commission -- excuse me, should the
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1

Committee recommend approval of the Conditional

2

Permit, the -- one of the proposed conditions I

3

believe is that the -- there is compliance with all

4

of the conditions set forth in the Land Use

5

Commission Special Use Permit having to do with the

6

uses of the property.

7

particular case it's unusual because we have an

8

intervention, so there's not a copy of the

9

recommended conditions before you.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And this is -- in this

Yeah, that poses a problem,

11

Mr. Chairman, because this is quite unusual.

12

have a District Boundary Amendment, we have a Change

13

in Zoning, we have a Land Use Commission Special Use

14

Permit for the State District, and we have a

15

Conditional Permit for zoning for County zoning.

16

And so what you're asking us to do today is to give

17

them a Change in Zoning and a Conditional Use

18

Permit; is that correct?

19
20
21
22

MS. LOUDERMILK:

In addition to a District Boundary

Amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

In addition to the District

Boundary Amendment.

23

MS. LOUDERMILK:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

We

Yes.

The
And this will be the first

property in this area that has been changed to Rural
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1

both at the State and County level, am I correct?

2

All the other properties are Ag.

3

MS. LOUDERMILK:

I believe the Montessori school has come

4

in for a Change in Zoning to Rural, which is on the

5

Hui No'eau end of the Sunnyside.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But as yet, they have not come to

7

us.

8

will be the first change.

9

They don't have that Change in Zoning.

MS. LOUDERMILK:

So this

Yes, this would be the first change in

10

that neighborhood, yes, to comply with the community

11

plan.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Do you know how many rooms

13

were used as a bed and breakfast, even though it

14

wasn't permitted, prior to Mr. Herling purchasing

15

the property?

16

MS. LOUDERMILK:

My understanding was that all of those

17

rooms were being used.

18

that are being requested was the number of rooms

19

being used.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That the number of rooms

And Mr. Herling knew when he

21

bought the property that it was not permitted -- a

22

permitted use?

23

MS. LOUDERMILK:

I cannot answer for Mr. Herling on that.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

Thank you, Robyn.

Okay, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

Members?

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Question.

Mr. Hokama.
Just so we're clear, Chairman, in

5

the Department's report summary of application page

6

2, under zoning they have Interim.

7

zoning ordinance and the attachment you have a

8

zoning map that says Agriculture to RU-1.

9

question is are we to believe the map or we

10

believe -- or are we to believe the summary

11

application statements?

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Oh, shit, that is incorrect.

correct, Mr. Hokama.

15

error on our part.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

17

So my

Planning Department, Ms. Loudermilk.

14

16

Look at the

You are

That is a huge oversight and

So for the record, the official

zoning at this time is?
LOUDERMILK:

Interim.

18

~1S.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Interim, okay, thank you for that.

20

And just to follow up and have reverification of

21

your response to Ms. Anderson, when Maui Land & Pine

22

sold the Banyan Tree estate in 1994, that owner at

23

that time began to operate a bed and breakfast home

24

in your comments.

25

the previous owner or you had zoning inspectors say

That fact was substantiated by
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that that was an operation there?
MS. LOUDERMILK:

That was substantiated by the intervenors

and the other surrounding property owners.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

So under Interim, you cannot

5

expand use outside of the existing use.

6

property owner cited and fined for the illegal

7

activity?

8

MS. LOUDERMILK:

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

10
11
12

So was this

I do not know.
Okay, Chairman, I'm done.

So the

zoning map would need to be corrected, then?
MS. LOUDERMILK:

That is correct, and thank you for

bringing that up.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay, Chairman, thank you.

Thank you.

Do you have anything further?

15

I realize that you have some time constraints and

16

might have to leave us.

17

you would like to add before you leave?

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Do you have anything else

Thanks, Mr. Chairman.

I'm sorry

19

I have to go.

20

doctors appointment.

21

I'm not going to support this, Mr. Chairman.

22

sorry.

23

appropriate area for a boutique hotel, and I'm

24

really sorry if Mr. Herling was told when he bought

25

the property that he could -- he could continue this

I have an appointment at 4:30,
I can't miss it.

So, yeah,
I'm

I just don't feel that this is an
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illegal use.
You know,

2

I think that when we do a

3

Conditional Use Permit for something that is not a

4

permitted use in a designated area, that it has to

5

be a very rare occasion, not something that we do

6

just because it's convenient and appropriate for the

7

landowner.

8

Ag-zoned land, and even if it's changed to Rural, we

9

don't permit vacation rentals, boutique hotels, or

10

And I'm sorry for that, but this is

bed and breakfasts in Rural-zoned land.
And, you know,

11

if it was one or two where the

12

impact was low,

13

traveled this road many, many times as I lived

14

Upcountry and I know it's a dangerous road, and I

15

don't want to put people at risk,

16

put tourists at risk, and I think it's unnecessary.

17

And I question the validity of us requesting a hold

18

harmless agreement from someone basically abdicating

19

our responsibility, our regulatory responsibility to

20

make sure that we're protecting the public safety.

21

And so for that reason I'm not going to be able to

22

support this, Mr. Chairman.

23

time.

24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

I might consider it, but I've

I don't want to

Thank you for your

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

Members, any

further questions or comment before the Chair gives

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

INC.

LU 6/1/05

105

1

a recommendation?

2

we have three ordinances here.

3

the Chair would entertain a motion to recommend to

4

passage to first reading thea revised proposed bill

5

entitled:

6

State Land Use District Classification from

7

Agricultural to Rural for Property Situated at

8

Hamakuapoko, Makawao, Hawaii on first reading.

9

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

Mr. Kane.

The Chair -- and
The first ordinance,

A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend the

10

12

Hearing none.

So moved.

Second.

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by
Discussion?

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla.

Thank you, Chair.

I was on the

14

Planning Commission when this thing came up to the

15

Planning Commission.

16

don't know if it would have made a difference with

17

some of the Council members today if we had taken

18

action much, much earlier.

19

regards to the traffic safety, and there's

20

mitigation as far as to correct those conditions as

21

noted in the report.

22

forward with this application, when it does come to

23

the State -- to the land use area, that some of the

24

other conditions can be imposed on the applicant at

25

that time.

This was some time back, and I

There are questions in

And in regards to going

Thank you, Chair.
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

Mr. Kane.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chair.

I'm going to be

3

supporting this recommendation, and this is

4

specifically for the State Land Use District

5

classification from Ag to Rural for this property.

6

I think with the information that's been given to us

7

that this place was developed back in the '20s with

8

the intent of having rural use and not active

9

agriculture on this area, I think this is an

10

appropriate request and I think it's conforming or

11

being made consistent with what we have in our

12

community plan as designating this area for rural.

13

So with that, I don't have a problem with moving

14

forward on this request, Mr. Chair.

15

supporting.

16
17
18

CHAIR CARROLL:

I'll be

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

Ms. Johnson, followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I too will be supporting the

19

request.

20

conditions and, you know, other meetings that will

21

take place to make sure that, you know, these items

22

are in place, I think it will give the applicant

23

time to address any further concerns.

24

that because the people that live in the area, if

25

they were continuing their objection to it, I think

I think that because there are other
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1

they would be here today.

2

later time, but I've been past the area.

3

did not know that this was even being operated, so

4

that's how low key the impact and the -- you know,

5

the visual impact is in the area.

6

They may be here at a
I actually

So its proximity to Makawao, I think that

7

there are small pockets where it's going to be

8

appropriate for us to look at some little reliever

9

areas where we're not encroaching on our

10

neighborhoods.

11

does have some room that is not going to, I don't

12

think -- at least it shouldn't impact the consistent

13

traffic that goes on in that area and the activities

14

that take place.

15

And while this is a neighborhood, it

So I don't really see this as something

16

that's a huge detriment to the area.

17

that it seems appropriate, and when it was

18

originally constructed, I bet the original use, with

19

it being used as an active manager's residence, I

20

can guarantee you that there was more traffic going

21

in and out of that driveway than there probably is

22

right now.

So that's my thought.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

plantation.

I really think

Thank you.
Mr. Hokama.

Not if you lived in a 1920s

My -- I have a question, and I don't
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1

know, maybe Mr. Kane may have some ability,

2

HSAC was monitoring it, but did the legislature this

3

past session, Mr. Chairman, make changes regarding

4

agricultural lands so that this consideration this

5

afternoon may not be able to move forward?

6

it was -- the legislature considered taking away

7

from the counties the ability to reclassify ag

8

lands.

9

drafts in the House and the Senate.

And it was hotly debated.

since

Because

There was many
Mr. Senator

10

Kokubun of the Big Island I think had Senate Draft

11

2, it went to Senate Draft 3, and I wasn't fully

12

aware of what was the final outcome, but my

13

understanding was some home rule was going to be

14

taken away from the counties even regarding less

15

than 15 acres reclassification of agricultural

16

lands.

17

A&B, but I'm not sure, but I ask this question so

18

that we may be -- we may make the appropriate

19

decision, whether to defer or not, but I would ask

20

if we can move forward with this reclassification,

21

not knowing what happened at the legislature,

22

Chairman.

And I think it's specific possibly to only

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

All right.

Mr. Kane,

can you assist us?

I'm not able to respond specifically

to the question as it pertains to this particular
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1

applicant and the request for Change in Zoning, but

2

I will assure the Council Chair that I will go

3

follow up with the question to find out exactly what

4

is the fate of this.

5

not Governor -- if this has passed through to the

6

Governor's desk that the Governor signed off on it

7

yet.

8

legislation at this point, and I don't know what the

9

status is.

I also don't know whether or

I don't believe she signed any type of

So I'll do a follow up.

And

10

unfortunately I can't get that now, but Staff may be

11

able to, because it does impact things that I think

12

we were tracking, that we may have Staff downstairs

13

that would be able to give us information, and I

14

don't know how quickly they'd be able to do that.

15

So that's the best I can do.

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

The Chair can only say as far as I know, I

17

haven't seen anything come through on there, so I

18

cannot enlighten anyone on yea or nay.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay, we did make the Department

20

aware that there was potential revisions to the

21

State statute regarding this, Chairman, and I think

22

at that time the Department took a wait and see

23

position because of the various drafts as it went

24

through the final stages of the legislative session.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Mr. Foley.
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MR. FOLEY:

Mr. Chairman.

The legislation that

2

Mr. Hokama's referring to I believe was HB 1640, and

3

my understanding of the bill -- well,

4

my understanding is that it hasn't been signed by

5

the Governor, but if it's signed by the Governor,

6

one of the provisions that was added at the last

7

minute allows the property owners to designate up to

8

15 -- 50 percent of their land as important ag land.

9

And once that's done, the County is prohibited from

first of all,

10

designating more of their land as important ag land.

11

However, there's no description in the

12

legislation as to how you figure out what -- what

13

the 50 percent is or the 100 percent is.

What is

14

it,

Is it 50

15

per island?

16

percent per county?

17

about how that might be interpreted, and I think

18

that's the provision that is most relevant, but I

19

don't believe it would have any impact on this --

20

this site and I'm almost positive it hasn't been

21

signed into law.

22

50 percent of the adjacent holdings?
Is it 50 percent per state?

Is it 50

So there's a lot of confusion

The -- all the County Planning Directors met

23

with the Land Use Commission staff and the State

24

Office of Planning on the 25th, which was last

25

Wednesday, to discuss this -- this legislation and
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1

also HB 109, which provides money for the counties

2

to do analysis about the -- changing the Rural

3

zoning district.

4

are the most relevant, and my understanding is that

5

neither of them have been signed and neither of

6

them,

7

property.

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

9

comments.

So these are the two bills that

I don't believe, would have any impact on this

Chairman, I thank the Director's

I would still ask you as our Chairman

10

that we still need to follow through, though, and

11

see if there is potential impact on this specific

12

consideration on the land use district

13

reclassification portion of the request, because

14

that's what the legislature was dealing with, land

15

use district reclassification specifically of ag --

16

ag classified lands.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

Mr. Hokama.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

19

Chairman.

20

us to consider the reclassification consideration to

21

Rural.

22

up a point that may be more legal than planning,

23

than a planning question.

I

just bring that up on this point,

I still think it would be appropriate for

That in itself has merits, but I

24

MS. NAKATA:

Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms.--
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1

MS. NAKATA:

Mr. Chair.

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

MS. NAKATA:

Nakata.

Staff would just note that the Hawaii State

4

Legislature website indicates that the bill -- House

5

Bill 1640 was transmitted to the Governor on May

6

5th, 2005 and it looks like no further action has

7

been taken by the Governor on it yet.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
various choices:

So, again, Chairman, she has
One, to sign it into law; two,

10

veto the bill; or allow it to come law without her

11

signature.

12

aware of what the potential change in status and we

13

need -- I would ask your Committee to work with

14

appropriate legal Council to ensure that if this

15

moves forward, we are within our purview to make

16

such a decision,

17

home rule ability of this County over lands less

18

than 15 acres.

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

So, again, I think we just need to be

since it was a question of reducing

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

We will take that

20

suggestion.

21

stands, because we are dealing with a maybe and

22

something that has no effect at this moment in time.

23

Any further discussion?

24

of the motion, please signify by saying "aye."

25

However, my recommendation still

Hearing none.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

VOTE: AYES:

3
4
5

NOES:
EXC. :
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Opposed?

Councilmembers Hokama, Johnson, Kane,
Mateo, Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmembers Anderson, Molina, and
Tavares.
None.
None.

6

MOTION CARRIED.
7

ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised
proposed District Boundary Amendment
bill.

8
9

10
11

CHAIR CARROLL:

Motion carried.

Thank you.

On to the next ordinance.

Excuse me.

The

12

Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage

13

to first reading the revised proposed bill entitled:

14

A Bill for an Ordinance to Change Zoning from

15

Interim District to RU-l Rural District Conditional

16

Zoning for Property Situated at Hamakuapoko,

17

Makawao, Maui, Hawaii on first reading.

18

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

CHAIR CARROLL:

Second.

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by

21

Mr. Kane.

22

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

So moved.

Mr. Pontanilla, discussion?
No further discussion.

Further discussion?

Mr. Kane.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Again,

I think

this is an appropriate request to move this property
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1

out of Interim and into Rural.

2

consistent with what the -- what the area calls for.

3

It's not active agriculture.

4

setting along Baldwin Avenue.

5

any discussion or thought about the request for the

6

Conditional Permit, I think the zoning category is

7

appropriate for this property.

8

supporting it.

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

none.

11

signify by saying "aye."

And without having

So I'll be

Hearing

All those in favor of the motion, please

12

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

VOTE: AYES:

15

17

It is in a Rural

Further discussion?

10

16

Again, I think it's

NOES:
EXC. :
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Opposed?
Counci~embers Hokama, Johnson, Kane,
Mateo, Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Counci~embers Anderson, Molina, and
Tavares.
None.
None.

18
MOTION CARRIED.
19
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised
proposed Change in Zoning (Conditional
Zoning) bill, and RECORDATION of
unilateral agreement.

20

21
22
23

CHAIR CARROLL:

Motion carried.

Moving on, the Chair would entertain a motion

24

to recommend passage to first reading the revised

25

proposed bill entitled:

A Bill for an Ordinance
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1

Granting a Conditional Permit to Marty Herling for a

2

Transient Vacation Rental within RU-1

3

Zoning District for Property Situated at 3265

4

Baldwin Avenue, Hamakuapoko, Makawao, Maui, Hawaii

5

on first reading and to file the communication.

6

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

Mr. Kane.

RU-1 Rural

So moved.

Second for discussion.

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla.

Seconded by

Discussion, Mr. Pontanilla.

10

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I yield to Mr. Kane.

Mr. Kane.
Thank you, Chair.

Because we don't

13

have the formal recommended conditions from the

14

Department, unless I'm missing something and I'm

15

wasn't paying attention to the discussion.

16

looking at the bill that was submitted, and we have

17

under Section 2, we have a total of five conditions;

18

that's correct, Ms. Loudermilk?

19

MS. LOUDERMILK:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

MS. LOUDERMILK:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm

I am looking for the bill as we speak.
Thank you.

That is correct.
And in your earlier comments you

23

stated that there were other conditions that were

24

going to be considered but because of the

25

intervention they were not sent forward to this body
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for consideration; is that correct?

2

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Partially.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Okay, if you can clarify, then.

That -- no, I'll give you full

5

correction.

You're correct.

I'll give full, yeah,

6

that if there was not an intervention, that as part

7

of the transmittal any conditions imposed on the

8

Land Use Commission Special Use Permit would have

9

been transmitted up to Council as part of the

10

record.

And I'd also like to note in this

11

conditional -- in the Conditional Permit that

12

there's

13

missing as a condition, one would be regarding

14

our letter of October 2003 regarding the

15

infrastructure, the traffic conditions, and then

16

secondly, that -- that as part of the Conditional

17

Permit that compliance with whatever conditions of

18

the Land Use Commission Special Use Permit be also

19

part of this.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

either there's potentially two items

Are those State Land Use Commission

21

conditions available somewhere within our binder,

22

Mr. Chairman?

23

MS. LOUDERMILK:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

Are you aware, or is Staff aware?

No, no.

There -- no.

Or was there any discussion of those

in the Planning Commission minutes that would
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identify those conditions?
MS. LOUDERMILK:

Generally yes, there would be the

3

conditions -- our standard conditions having to do

4

with who the Land Use Commission Special Use Permit

5

is issued to, the length of time, the certificate of

6

insurance.

7

there would be the conditions that are part of the

8

settlement agreement, and then generally additional

9

conditions would -- would have to do with the ADA

Those would be the standards.

Then

10

compliance and the traffic.

11

those general three categories, large bulk, part of

12

the settlement agreement, which is part of our

13

initial transmittal, our -- what we call our

14

standard conditions in terms of the performance of

15

the and implementation of the Special Use Permit,

16

and then the other outstanding issues that need to

17

be complied with would be the traffic improvements

18

required as well as the ADA.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So that falls under

The ADA would be covered under

20

Condition No.5, full compliance with all applicable

21

governmental requirements

22

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

MS. LOUDERMILK:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

shall be rendered?

Yes.
So that wouldn't be an issue?
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1

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Correct.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

Mr. Chair, my -- ideally,

3

Mr. Chair, I would request that this item is

4

deferred and that we ask the Planning Department

5

because it seems as though the -- the intervention,

6

from my understanding, has been settled.

7

because it's been settled, that we would ask the

8

Planning Department to forward those conditions that

9

were initially going to be forwarded as part of the

And

10

formal recommendation through the

11

to us, but because it hasn't been done, I think it

12

would be in our best interest, and this is my -- I'm

13

not speaking for any member, myself, ideally I would

14

like to have that transmitted to the body as an

15

amended -- amended version to this transmittal and

16

have it considered for this particular ordinance or

17

this bill before we act on it.

18

deserves the discussion and the review for this

19

for this application.

20

and transmitted

Because I think it

Now, I find it curious that this was

21

something that's been going on illegally, and I

22

applaud the applicant for coming forward and wanting

23

to make it legal.

24

proper word is hypocritical that the very people who

25

had it before and were running it illegally came in

I find it -- I don't know if the
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1

and opposed it once they wanted to make it legal.

2

Now, that's the understanding I got.

3

interesting that that's how things played out.

4

You know, it's

Nevertheless, my intent is to ask the body to

5

consider, and I will yield the floor, because I did

6

make a second for the discussion, but my intent

7

would be instead of seeing it going up or down now

8

or going up without the consideration of the

9

conditions or go down because members don't feel

10

comfortable with the application, even if it's only

11

for one year,

12

Chair, to consider a deferral, and, you know, only

13

until once we receive those conditions that were

14

going to be a part of a transmittal, that we have it

15

posted at one of your -- you know, a recent upcoming

16

meetings.

17

because we've had a pretty lengthy discussion, we'd

18

only have that one, so it would be by itself with

19

just those conditions, that we be allowed to take a

20

look at that before we move this forward.

21

Chair.

I would ask the members and you,

I know your schedule is heavy, but

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I yield,

Mr. Mateo.

Chairman, thank you very much.

24

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

And I would be able to support

25

Mr. Kane's recommendation and urge the Chair to look

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

INC.

LU 6/1/05

120

1

in that direction, because at this particular time

2

my difficulty was with the intervention, and I was

3

ready to vote against this particular item because

4

of it.

5

to provide me additional information contrary to my

6

own thoughts, then that would help me in being able

7

to support it.

8

consideration.

9
10
11

CHAIR CARROLL:

And by getting the required or the documents

So, Mr. Chair, your full

Thank you.

Any further discussion?

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I have no problem with it either

12

way, because basically I think it is important when

13

we do look at the conditions and -- so that we're

14

sure of what we're passing forward.

15

there would be any possibility for us to -- and I

16

guess based on the comment made earlier by Council

17

Chair Hokama, he would prefer that the work be done

18

in Committee, as opposed to being done on the floor

19

of the Council, but I basically think that because

20

this is also a one-year very narrow window, it would

21

also give time to look at the compliance.

22

after that operation for the one-year period, we

23

might want to add in or the Department might want to

24

add additional conditions that would not have

25

originally been included based on just simply the
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operations.

2

So because it's only -- they're going to have

3

to apply again, even if they get this in nine months

4

from now for another Conditional Use Permit, I

5

really don't have a problem with moving it forward

6

and, you know, going either way, but it's whatever

7

the will of the majority is, so I'll go along with

8

whatever that will is.

9
10

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Any further discussion?

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Pontanilla.
I just want to

11

clarify in regards to one of the conditions that the

12

Department of Public Works had stated in regards to

13

indemnifying the County in regards to the traffic

14

mitigation, if that would also be included in the

15

proposed recommendation through the Land Use --

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

17

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Ms. Loudermilk.
We will work with the Department of

18

Public Works on that and incorporate that in any

19

proposed recommendation.

20

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Mr. Chair, as the

21

maker of the motion, I'm hearing a lot of members in

22

regards to deferring this matter until we got copies

23

of the proposed condition to this Committee so that

24

we all be satisfied.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

The Chair would ask if you would withdraw
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your motion.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Yeah, at this time I would like to

withdraw my motion.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Members, I apologize for not

5

having this information today.

That was an

6

unintentional oversight on the part of the Chair of

7

this Committee.

8

possibly finish this up, but I agree that we do need

9

to have the information.

If we had had that today, we could

I think we can schedule

10

this in with some of our other meetings in the near

11

future, because it seems to be just this one item.

12

Hopefully we won't be rehashing everything we've

13

gone over already and we can do it at that time.

14

the Chair's recommendation at this time is deferral

15

of the item.

So

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

18

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused: MA, MM, CT).

19

ACTION:

No objection.
No objections.

DEFER Conditional Permit bill pending
further discussion.

20
21

CHAIR CARROLL:

Hearing that, there is no further

22

business.

The Chair thanks all those that

23

participated today.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Mr. Chair.

Yes.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

MS. LOUDERMILK:

I think Staff would like --

Oh, Ms. Loudermilk, yes.
Mr. Chair, could we respectfully request

4

that your Staff send us a letter with the specific

5

information requirements to ensure that we do not

6

overlook anything?

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

MS. LOUDERMILK:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

I promise you, you will get a letter.
Thank you very much.
Hearing nothing further, thank you very

10

much for attending this meeting today, and this Land

11

Use meeting of June 1st, 2005 stands adjourned.

12

(Gavel) .

13

ADJOURN:

4:46 p.m.

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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C E R T I F I CAT E

1

2

STATE OF HAWAI I

3
4

SS.
CITY AND COUNTY OF MAUl

5

6

I, Jessica R. Perry, Certified Shorthand Reporter

7

for the State of Hawaii, hereby certify that the

8

proceedings were taken down by me in machine shorthand and

9

was thereafter reduced to typewritten form under my

10

supervisioni that the foregoing represents to the best of

11

my ability, a true and correct transcript of the

12

proceedings had in the foregoing matter.

13

I further certify that I am not attorney for any of

14

the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the

15

cause.

16
17

DATED this 18th day of June, 2005, in Honolulu,
Hawaii.

18
19
20
21
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22
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J,7r~Ica R. Perry, CSR!~, 404
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